10:45

10:55

11:20

11:50

12:05

12:15

Agriculture, Environment and Natural Resources
Policy Committee

2019 CSAC Legislative Conference

Hyatt Regency Hotel, Regency A Ballroom
Thursday, April 25th, 2019 — 10:45 a.m. - 12:15 p.m.

AGENDA

Supervisor Sherri Brennan, Tuolumne County, Chair
Supervisor Carole Groom, San Mateo County, Vice Chair

VI.

Welcome and Introductions
Supervisor Sherri Brennan, Tuolumne County, Chair
Supervisor Carole Groom, San Mateo County, Vice Chair

California’s Looming Recycling Crisis: Challenges and
Solutions

Katerina Robinson, Legislative Director, Office of State
Senator Nancy Skinner

The State of Cannabis: Regulation, Taxation and the
lllicit Market

Nicole Elliott, Senior Advisor for Cannabis, Governor’s Office
of Business and Economic Development

Hasan Sarsour, CSAC Federal Affairs Lobbyist, Paragon
Government Relations

Wildfire Resiliency: Wildfires and Climate Change
California’s Energy Future: A Report from Governor
Newsom’s Strike Force

Governor’s Office Representative

AENR Legislative Priorities Status Update
Cara Martinson, CSAC Senior Legislative Representative

Closing Comments and Adjournment
Supervisor Sherri Brennan, Tuolumne County, Chair
Supervisor Carole Groom, San Mateo County, Vice Chair

Page 1 of 98



ATTACHMENTS

Item IV: Wildfire Resiliency: Wildfires and Climate Change California’s
Energy Future: A Report from Governor Newsom'’s Strike Force

Attachment One...........ccceeeenneee. Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s
Energy Future: A Report from Governor
Newsom’s Strike Force April 12, 2019

Attachment Two........................... CSAC Press Release: CSAC Ready to Engage
With Governor In Wildfire Plan To Protect
Counties and Residents

Attachment Three..................... Wildfire Coalition Press Release: Fire Victims,
Local Governments, and Insurers Respond to
Governor’s Wildfire Strategy

Attachment Four .............cccoeeeee. CSAC Letter to CPUC: Public Safety Power
Shutoff Procedure Regulations

Item V: AENR Legislative Priorities Status Update

Attachment Five.................cc. AENR 2019 Legislative Priorities Update
Memo
Attachment Six............cccceeeeen. 2019 AENR Active Positions Bill Report

Page 2 of 98



Wildfire Resiliency
Attachment One

Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future: A Report from
Governor Newsom'’s Strike Force April 12, 2019

Page 3 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change:
California’s Energy Future

A Report from Governor Newsom's Strike Force

April 12, 2019

Page 4 of 98



Page 5 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Executive Summary

Climate change has created a new wildfire reality for California. The state’s fire season is
now almost year round. More than 25 million acres of California wildlands are classified
as under very high or extreme fire threat. Approximately 25 percent of the state’s
population — 11 million people - lives in that high-risk area.

Wildfires are not only more frequent but far more devastating. Fifteen of the 20 most
destructive wildfires in the state’s history have occurred since 2000; ten of the most
destructive fires have occurred since 2015. The results are visible to all: lives lost, grave
fire damage to homes and communities, rising gas and electricity rates, pressure on the
home insurance market, and the threat of insolvency for California’s ufilities. The largest
investor-owned utility in the state has filed for bankruptcy protection and two other
major investor-owned utilities in southern California have had their credit ratings
downgraded. Financial experts have opined that these utilities are likely one major fire
away from bankruptcy. Making matters worse, this year has all the conditions for
devastating fires, with a very wet season leading to high vegetation density. During fire
season, that vegetation dries out and becomes fuel.

Since the first days of his administration, the Governor has taken decisive action to
strengthen California’s emergency preparedness and response capabilities to mitigate
wildfires and build community resilience. In response to instability in the energy sector
and to PG&E's decision to file for bankruptcy, the Governor created a sirike force to
coordinate the state’s efforts relating to the safety, reliability, and affordability of energy,
as well as to continue progress to achieve the state’s climate commitments. As part of
these efforts, sixty days ago, the Governor directed the strike force to develop a
comprehensive roadmap to address the issues of wildfires, climate change, and the
state’s energy sector. That roadmap is attached.

The strike force report sets out steps the state must take to reduce the incidence and
severity of wildfires, including the significant wildfire mitigation and resiliency efforts the
Governor has already proposed. If renews the state’s commitment to clean energy. It
outlines actions to hold the state’s utilities accountable for their behavior and potential
changes to stabilize California’s utilities to meet the energy needs of customers and the
economy.

It is imperative that utilities not put profits ahead of safety and service. That is why the
state has and will continue to advocate in PG&E's bankruptcy proceeding for fair
treatment of fire victims, for California consumers, and for California policies and values.

Preventing and Responding to Catastrophic Wildfires

The report begins by setfting out steps that the administration, the CPUC, local
communities, and utilities must take to reduce the incidence and severity of wildfires and
to step up both community resilience and the state’s response capabilities. To
accomplish this, it is critical that the state:

1

Page 6 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

¢ Expand fire prevention activity by improving forest and vegetation management,
accelerating fuel reduction projects on both public and private land, fraining the
workforce needed to scale up these projects, investing in new technologies to model
and monitor fire risk, and strengthening utility oversight so that they invest more in
safety.

¢ Make communities more resilient by considering updating codes that govern
defensible space, encouraging cost-effective hardening of homes, strengthening
evacuation, encouraging other emergency planning, and improving land use
practices to reduce the damage to life and property from wildfires.

¢ Investin fire suppression and response by investing in new fire engines and aircraft,
re-deploying National Guard personnel from the border to support fire suppression
initiatives, purchasing detection cameras to provide advanced data to firefighters,
and investing in a statewide mutual aid system to pre-position resources in high-risk
areas.

e Call on the Federal Government to Better Manage Federal Forest Land. As the owner
of 57 percent of California’s forestland, the federal government must also do its fair
share to reduce fire risk. Specifically, the Governor has joined the governors of
Washington and Oregon to call for the federal government to double the investment
in managing federal forestlands in our states due to the high risk of wildfires.

Renewing California’s Commitment to Clean Energy

Given that climate change is a core driver of heightened wildfire risk, California must
continue its fransition to clean energy. California has established ambitious greenhouse
gas reduction targets and the utility sector has been critical to the significant progress
our state has made. But, an unstable energy market presents new risks, and
temperatures keep rising. Any solution must adapt to the changing market landscape
while maintaining the state’'s commitment to mitigating climate change. To do this, the
state should consider:

¢ Evaluating state-level resource backstop options to reduce gaps and inefficiencies
that can result from an increasingly fragmented energy market — including the option
of creating a state power procurement entity.

¢ Increasing transparency and reliability protections for customers by establishing
standards to make energy provider information more transparent and facilitate
statewide planning.

Allocating Responsibility for Wildfire Costs

An honest assessment of the realities of current and future climate change tells us that
no matter how committed we are to preventing and fighting fires and to reducing
carbon emissions over the long-term, the state will experience further fire damage in the
coming years. If we continue on our current legal and regulatory path, we will get similar
results — more deadly and destructive fires that put utilities near insolvency. That is
unacceptable for fire victims and utility customers and is incompatible with an economy
that requires safe, reliable, and affordable power. Any real plan must allocate costs
resulting from wildfires in a manner that shares the burden broadly among stakeholders,

2

Page 7 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

including utilities (ratepayers and investors), insurance companies, local governments,
and attorneys. Taxpayers have substantially increased their contribution to mitigating
fire risk and fighting fires when they ignite.

Any successful approach for allocating responsibility for wildfire costs should be based
on the following principles: (1) maintaining safe and affordable power, (2) holding
utilities accountable to prioritize safety, (3) treating wildfire victims fairly, (4) requiring
equitable stakeholder contributions, (5) reducing overall costs from wildfire damage,
(6) promoting California’s clean energy goals, and (7) recognizing the contribution of
California taxpayers.

The strike force has identified the following three concepts for evaluation against these
principles:

¢ A liquidity-only fund that would provide liquidity for utilities to pay wildfire damage
claims pending CPUC determination of cost recovery potentially coupled with
modification of cost recovery standards.

e Adopting a fault-based standard that would modify California’s strict liability
standard to one based on fault to balance the need for public improvements with
private harm to individuals.

e Creation of a catastrophic wildfire fund coupled with a revised cost recovery
standard to spread the cost of catastrophic wildfires more broadly among
stakeholders.

These concepts should be publicly debated, as each has impacts, tradeoffs, and
consequences that must be addressed. Some concepfts rely on voluntary conftributions
from utility investors, who in exchange will demand more clarity in the regulatory
standard for cost recovery from ratepayers.

The choices are difficult, the future is uncertain and the solutions are imperfect. But
legislative action is necessary for the stability of the state’s energy market to meet the
needs of Californians, and to achieve the state’s clean energy goals.

Under the status quo, all parties lose - wildfire victims, energy consumers, and
Californians committed to addressing climate change. Victims face a great deal of
uncertainty and diminished ability to be compensated for their losses and harm.
Customers face rising rates and instability. California’s ability to achieve its climate goals
is frustrated. Utility vendors and employees face uncertainty and likely significant losses.
The bottom line is that utilities either in or on the verge of bankruptcy are not good for
Californians, for economic growth, or for the state’s future.

Strengthening Utility Market Regulation

Utilities must be active participants in the quest for safe, reliable, and affordable power.
This report recommends strengthening utility regulation by reforming the California Public
Utilities Commission (CPUC) to:

3

Page 8 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Expand safety expertise by improving the CPUC’s ability to review wildfire mitigation
plans, conduct inspections and audits, and enforce safety standards at investor-
owned utilities.

Clarify cost recovery standards by setting clear guidelines in statute for when the
CPUC can pass on the costs of claims from wildfire damage to ratepayers.

Improve decision-making by overhauling procedures, delegating more decisions to
technical staff so that judges and commissioners focus on core questions of rate-
setting, and improving enforcement.

Review high-risk industry regulatory models and explore options for incorporating the
latest climate impact research, in concert with the Governor’s Office of Planning &
Research, as well as academic and industry experts in risk reduction.

Holding PG&E Accountable for Safety

PG&E is a textbook example of what happens when a utility does not invest in safety
after numerous deadly reminders to do so over many years. Even today, PG&E is taking
advantage of the bankruptcy process to promote the interests of investors over fire
victims and other stakeholders. California will advocate for fair freatment of victims and
employees, as well as to uphold the state’s clean energy commitments in the
bankruptcy process. The state will:

Monitor — and intervene - in the bankruptcy proceedings to protect California’s
interests. PG&E is a private entity, but its misconduct has had grave consequences
for the state and its people.

Evaluate options to satisfy wildfire claims from the last two years so fire victims are
treated fairly.

Demand that a reorganized PG&E serve the public interest. After years of
mismanagement and safety failures, no options can be taken off the table to reform
PG&E, including municipalization of all or a portion of PG&E's operations; division of
PG&E’s service territories into smaller, regional markets; refocusing PG&E's operations
on transmission and distribution; or reorganization of PG&E as a new company
structured to meet its obligations to California.

The status quo is unsustainable. A better future is possible — one grounded in clear rules,
effective regulation, and a new emphasis on safety so every Californian can access
safe, reliable, affordable power. As the climate changes and risks rise, California must
once more lead the way.

4

Page 9 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Infroduction

California faces a dramatic increase in the number and severity of wildfires. Fifteen of
the 20 most destructive wildfires in the state’s history have occurred since 2000; ten of
the most destructive fires have occurred since 2015." While wildfires are a natural part of
California’s ecology, the fire season is getting longer every year—with most counties
now experiencing fire season from mid-May to mid-December and several counties
facing fire danger year-round.2 Warmer temperatures, variable snowpack, and earlier
snowmelt caused by climate change make for longer and more intense dry seasons,
leaving forests more susceptible to severe fire.

Figure-013
25
20 Wildfires with
Climate Change
o
€15
a
o
5
s 10
S
5
Wildfires without
Climate Change
0

1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015
Source: Abatzoglou/Williams 2016, PNAS 113

At the same time that our climate is changing and fueling the devastating force of
wildfires, increased development in the wildland-urban interface (WUI) has placed more

1 See generally, CAL FIR, Top 20 Most Destructive California Wildfires, (Mar. 2019),
http://www fire.ca.gov/communications/downloads/fact_sheets/Top20_Destruction.pdf) (last visited Apr. 10, 2019) (“Top
20 Most Destructive California Wildfires”).

2 See generally, CAL FIRE, 2018 Fire Season Incident Information,
http://cdfdata.fire.ca.gov/incidents/incidents_seasondeclarationseyear=2018 (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

3 Eberhard Faust & Markus Steuer, CLIMATE CHANGE INCREASES WILDFIRE RISK IN CALIFORNIA | MUNICH RE MUNICHRE.COM (2019),
https://www.munichre.com/topics-online/en/climate-change-and-natural-disasters/climate-change/climate-change-
has-increased-wildfire-risk.ntml (last visited Apr 11, 2019) (“Climate Changes Increases Wildfire Risk”).

Page 10 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

residents in the potential path of destruction. Today, approximately 25 percent of the
state’s population (over 11 million people) lives in high fire-risk areas, including the WUI.4

The combination of more powerful wildfires and more Californians living in their paths has
resulted in enormous, incomprehensible loss. Last year, 85 people died in the Camp Fire
alone and 19,000 homes and other structures were damaged or destroyed.5 According
to data from Butte County, more than 60 percent of those victims were over 60 years
old.¢ Paradise and other towns were devastated. The Camp Fire was only one of
approximately 7,600 wildfires in 2018. Damage estimates for the 2018 wildfire season are
staggering, with insured losses alone exceeding $12 billion.” Thousands of Californians
who lost their homes, and their livelihoods in these fires, are still without permanent
homes and struggling to rebuild their lives.

The damages caused by wildfires are unsustainable for the directly impacted victims, for
the state, which is spending hundreds of millions of dollars to respond, and for local
communities frying to rebuild. In response to climate change and heightened wildfire
threat, California is expanding resilience efforts through increased investments in fire
mitigation and response, community hardening, and emergency preparedness.

California’s electric utilities must be part of the solution to this problem. In the past four
years, equipment owned by California’s three largest investor-owned utilities sparked
more than 2,000 fires.8 Utility-caused fires tend to spread quickly and be among the most
destructive. Hundreds of thousands of miles of electrical transmission and distribution
lines snake across the California landscape, often igniting fires during extreme wind
events and in remote areas, making early detection and fire suppression extremely
challenging. Longer fire seasons make utility-caused fires even more likely. Hardening
the electrical grid is thus a critical component to overall wildfire risk management.? Our
utilities—public and private—must make needed investments to reduce the risk of ufility-
ignited fires and, with the new reality of climate change, must do so now.

At the same time, the current system for allocating costs associated with catastrophic
wildfires—often caused by utility infrastructure, but exacerbated by drought, climate
change, land-use policies, and a lack of forest management—is untenable both for

4 LEVENTHAL CENTER FOR ADVANCED URBANISM, Cataloguing the Interface: Wildfire and Urban Development in California, (Spring
2018), http://Icau.mit.edu/project/cataloguing-interface-wildfire-and-urban-development-california (last visited Apr. 10,
2019).

4Top 20 Most Destructive California Wildfires.

5 Cal Fire, Top 20.

6 Los Angeles Times, Many victims of California's worst wildfire were elderly and died in or near their homes, new data
show, (Dec. 13, 2018) (archived from the original on Dec. 14, 2018).

7 CAL. DEP'T. INSUR., CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE INSURED LOSSES FROM THE 2018 CALIFORNIA WILDFIRES, (Jan., 28, 2019),
http://www.insurance.ca.gov/0400-news/0100-press-releases/2019/upload/nr14-2019Insured-Losses-2018-Wildfires.pdf (last
visited Apr. 10, 2019).

8 Carolyn Kousky, et. al., Wildfire Costs In California: The Role of Electric Utilities Wharton Risk Management and Decision
Processes Center (Sept. 2018), riskcenter.wharton.upenn.edu/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/Wildfire-Cost-in-C A-Role-of-
Utilities-1.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

? Measures commonly used to harden the electrical grid include using insulated electrical lines in high-risk areas,
replacing wood poles with steel, installing specialized monitoring equipment, and using new technologies that can
reduce sparks or undergrounding lines when necessary in extreme high-fire areas.

2

Page 11 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

utility customers and for our economy. Multi-billion dollar wildfire liabilities over the last
several years have crippled the financial health of our privately and publicly owned
electric utilities. Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) filed for bankruptcy in the face
of massive potential liability for wildfire damages. Other investor-owned and public
utilities have experienced recent credit ratings downgrades, with San Diego Gas &
Electric (SDG&E) and Southern California Edison Company (SCE) now precipitously
hovering just above junk status. Utilities rely on credit to finance ongoing infrastructure
investments, including fire mitigation. As ufilities’ credit ratings deteriorate, their
borrowing costs increase and those costs for capital necessary to make essential safety
improvements are passed directly tto customers. These downgrades, and the prospect
of additional utility bankruptcy filings, directly impact Californians’ access to safe,
reliable and affordable electricity.

In his State of the State Address, the Governor directed a strike force to develop a
comprehensive strategy, within 60 days, to address the destabilizing effect of
catastrophic wildfires on the state’s electric utilities. He charged the strike force with
developing a strategy to ensure California’s “continued access to safe affordable
power” and to “seek justice for fire victims, fairness for employees and protection for

consumers."'10

As the Governor stated, the crisis confronting California’s electric utilities comes “at a
time when the entire energy market is evolving” and is exacerbated by “regulations and
insurance practices created decades ago [that] didn’t anticipate these changes.” The
Governor recognized the need to "map out longer-term strategies, not just for the
utilities’ future, but for California’s future, to ensure that the cost of climate change
doesn’t fall on those least able to afford it.”

The Governor directed his strike force to develop a comprehensive strategy that
achieves the following objectives:
1. Assure access to safe, reliable and affordable power for all Californians.

2. Reduce the severity of wildfires through continued investments in fire mitigation,
vegetation management and other strategies to reduce fuels.

3. Develop and implement technologies to more quickly identify and respond to
wildfires.

4. Reduce the number of utility-sparked wildfires through smart investments in increased
safety, prevention, grid-hardening, and vegetation management around electrical
lines.

5. Facilitate fair and prompt treatment for wildfire victims and allocate the burden of
wildfire damage responsibly and fairly across all stakeholders.

6. Ensure that California continues to make progress toward its clean energy goals.

10 OfricE OF Gov. GAVIN NewsoMm, Governor Newsom Delivers State of the State Address, (Feb. 12, 2019),
https://www.gov.ca.gov/2019/02/12/state-of-the-state-address/ (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

3

Page 12 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

7. Provide sufficient certainty to investors and credit ratings agencies to avoid
downgrades of utilities that could cause further bankruptcies and/or drive up
borrowing costs, each of which raises prices for utility customers.

8. Hold utilities accountable for improving safety and preventing wildfires and for
damages if their misconduct causes a wildfire.

9. Avoid a band-aid approach and instead set a path for the energy market of the
future.

10. PG&E serves 40 percent of California electricity customers and has an egregious
safety record. The state must hold PG&E accountable and demand systemic
reforms and a commitment to safety.

This Report provides a roadmap to confront the challenges of catastrophic wildfires:

Part 1: Catastrophic Wildfire Prevention and Emergency Response

Part 2: Mitigating Climate Change through Clean Energy Policies

Part 3: Fair Allocation of Catastrophic Wildfire Damages

Part 4: A More Effective CPUC with the Tools to Manage a Changing Utility Market
Part 5: Holding PG&E Accountable & Building a Utility that Prioritizes Safety

It will take a comprehensive approach to mitigate and prepare for wildfires, as well as to
advance our climate goals. That said, the most vexing public policy challenge
addressed in this Report is the equitable distribution of wildfire liability. The Report sets
forth three concepts to address this central question--the imminent wildfire liability issues
facing California’s utilities--each as described further in Part 3:

e Concept1: Liquidity-Only Fund. This concept would create a fund to provide
liquidity for utilities to pay wildfire damage claims pending CPUC determination of
whether or not those claims are appropriate for cost recovery and may be coupled
with modification of cost recovery standards.

e Concept 2: Changing Strict Liability to a Fault-Based Standard. This concept
would involve modification of California’s strict liability standard under inverse
condemnation to one based on fault to balance the need for public improvements
with private harm to individuals.

e Concept 3: Wildfire Fund. This concept would create a wildfire fund coupled
with a revised cost recovery standard to spread the cost of catastrophic wildfires
more broadly among stakeholders.

California needs to think creatively to find new ways to apportion the cost of
catastrophic wildfires—ones that treat victims fairly and compassionately, that are
sustainable for consumers, and that spread the burden equitably.

4

Page 13 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Part 1: Catastrophic Wildfire Prevention and Response

Catastrophic wildfires pose an urgent threat to lives, property, and resources in
California. The 2017 and 2018 wildfire seasons were the most destructive in California’s
history." More than 92,000 wildfires ignited across California in 2017 and 7,571 wildfires
ignited in 2018, burning more than 2.8 million acres combined.'? These fires caused the
loss of 13?2 lives and destroyed tens of thousands of homes and businesses.!® They also
poisoned the air across vast swaths of the state and harmed public health.!4
Additionally, catastrophic wildfires compounded the challenge of reducing our
greenhouse gas emissions by emitting millions of carbon particles into the air.'>

Climate change, widespread tree mortality, weak utility infrastructure, and the
proliferation of homes in the WUl magnify the wildfire threat and place substantially more
people and property at risk than ever before.

Today, as illustrated in Figure-02 below, California’s WUl is home to approximately
4.5 million homes and 11 million people.

Figure-02
Number of Houses in the WUI by State'¢

Number of Houses

I 3000001 - 4,457,884
I 500,001 - 3,000,000
B 1,000,001 - 1,500,000
1 500,001 - 1,000,000
[ 5,058-500,000

1" CAL FIRE, Incident Information as of Jan. 24, 2018, http://cdfdata.fire.ca.gov/incidents/incidents_statseyear=2017 (last
visited Apr. 10, 2019).

121d.

13 CAL FIRE, Top 20 Most Destructive California Wildfires, (Mar. 14, 2019),

http://www fire.ca.gov/communications/downloads/fact_sheets/Top20_Destruction.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019); CAL
FIRe, Top 20 Deadliest California Wildfires, (Feb. 19, 2019),
http://calfire.ca.gov/communications/downloads/fact_sheets/Top20_Deadliest.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019); CAL FIRE,
Top 20 Largest California Wildfires, (Mar. 14, 2019),

http://www fire.ca.gov/communications/downloads/fact_sheets/Top20_Acres.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

14 STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF PLANNING AND RESEARCH, et al., California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment:
Statewide Summary Report at 38, http://www.climateassessment.ca.gov/state/docs/20190116-StatewideSummary.pdf)
(last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

15 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE, New Analysis Shows 2018 California Wildfires Emitted as Much Carbon Dioxide as an
Entire Year's Worth of Electricity (Nov. 30, 2018), https://www.doi.gov/pressreleases/new-analysis-shows-2018-california-
wildfires-emitted-much-carbon-dioxide-entire-years) (last visited Apr. 10, 2019) (“Fourth Climate Assessment”).

16 CAL. DEP'T. INSUR., The Availability and Affordability of Coverage for Wildfire Loss in Residential Property Insurance in the
Wildland-Urban Interface and Other High-Risk Areas of California: CDI Summary and Proposed Solutions, (Dec. 2017),
http://www.insurance.ca.gov/0400-news/0100-press-releases/2018/upload/nr002-
2018AvailabilityandAffordabilityofWildfireCoverage.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

5

Page 14 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

More than 25 million acres of California wildlands are now classified as under very high or
extreme fire threat, extending that risk to over half the state--a high-risk area that will
likely grow over time.'” Decades of fire suppression have disrupted natural fire cycles
and added to increased wildfire risk.

Figure-03
Proportion of Dwelling Units with High / Very High Average Risk Scores'®

PN

Proportion of Dwelling Units with
High/Very High Avg. Risk Scores (%)

I so.10% - 100.00%
B 40.01% - 80.00%
] 40.01% - 60.00%
C 12001%-40.00%
[ 10.00%-20.00%

The state’s major study on climate impacts, the Fourth Climate Assessment, projects that
California’s wildfire burn area likely will increase by 77 percent by the end of the
century.’? The growing risk of catastrophic wildfires has created an imperative for the
state to act urgently and swiftly to expand preemptive fire prevention and bolster
wildfire response efforts to help protect vulnerable communities and reduce the severity
of wildfires in our state.

All levels of government, communities, utilities, and residents must share in this
responsibility in order to better defend California from this devastating threat.

17 See CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION, Community Wildfire Prevention & Mitigation Report (Feb. 22,
2019), http://www fire.ca.gov/downloads/45-Day%20Report-FINAL.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

18 |bid.
19 Fourth Climate Assessment at 9.

6

Page 15 of 98


http://www.fire.ca.gov/downloads/45-Day%20Report-FINAL.pdf

Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Wildfire Reduction and Mitigation Action Plan

Recognizing the need for urgent action, the Newsom administration has placed a high
priority on fire prevention and recovery measures, as well as on identifying ways the
state can become more resilient in the face of future fires.

On January 9, the Governor issued Executive Order N-05-19, directing CAL FIRE to
recommend immediate, medium and long-term actions to help prevent destructive
wildfires. With an emphasis on taking immediate actions to protect vulnerable
populations, and recognizing a backlog in fuels management, the Executive Order
called for a strategic approach to focus actions on California's most vulnerable
communities to realize the greatest returns on reducing risk to life and property in the
most fire-prone areas of the state.

To further augment fire prevention, the Governor signed a General Order in February
rescinding previous authorization for California National Guard operations at the U.S.-
Mexico border and redeploying personnel to prepare for the upcoming fire season by
supporting CAL FIRE in fire prevention and fire suppression efforts.

The state needs to continue to build on this work with a focus on four specific areas:

11. General Prevention and Fire Suppression
12. Building Safer Utilities
13. Emergency Response

14. Land Use, Building Codes and Community Resilience

General Prevention and Fire Suppression

In response to Executive Order N-05-19, CAL FIRE released the Community Wildfire
Prevention and Mitigation Report (CAL FIRE Report) on March 5. The CAL FIRE Report
outlined a suite of actions to substantially reduce wildfire risk to 200 of California’s most
vulnerable communities this fire season.

On March 22, the Governor, citing the extreme peril posed by wildfire risk, issued an
Emergency Proclamation directing CAL FIRE to immediately implement 35 emergency
projects identified to protect lives and property. CAL FIRE will utilize existing funding
totaling $30 million from the Forest Health and Fire Prevention Program to immediately
execute the priority fuel reduction projects.

The proclamation suspends certain requirements and regulations. To ensure
environmental protection, CAL FIRE requested input from regulatory agencies, and will
employ a set of best management practices designed to identify and avoid sensitive
natural and archaeological resources.

As discussed below, the state has numerous new initiatives to prevent and suppress fires.

7

Page 16 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Improving Vegetation Management and Forest Health

After decades of disinvestment, the state has committed hundreds of millions of dollars in
recent years to improve the health and resiliency of the state’s forests.

Despite these increases, much work remains to be done. Over the next five years, the
state will commit over $1 billion for critical fuel reduction projects, to support prescribed
fire crews, forest thinning, and other forest health projects. In addition, the Governor
redeployed the National Guard to support fire prevention efforts and is proposing to
expand the California Conservation Corps to focus on forest management.

Since 2010, California has nearly doubled the number of acres treated annually by fuel
reduction, and has tripled the number of acres treated by prescribed burning. However,
these efforts—less than 33,000 treated acres in 2017-18—are dwarfed by the number of
acres that require attention. California’s Forest Carbon Plan sets a goal of treating
500,000 acres of private land every year.

As the owner of 57 percent of California’s forestland, the federal government must do its
fair share to reduce fire risk. Specifically, the Governor has joined the governors of
Washington and Oregon to call for the federal government to double the investment in
managing federal forestlands in our states due to the high-risk of wildfires.20

Support for Regional Projects

In March 2019, the California Natural Resources Agency and Department of Conservation
announced the award of $20 million in block grants for regional projects to improve forest
health and increase fire resiliency. The Regional Forest and Fire Capacity Program helps
communities prioritize, develop and implement projects that strengthen fire resiliency.

Suppression

In recent years, the state has added additional year-round fire engines and firefighters
to address longer, more severe fire seasons. The state has also launched a major
initiafive to replace Vietnam War-era helicopters with new state-of-the-art helicopters
with enhanced firefighting capabilities. The Governor's Budget proposes to further
expand the state’s firefighting surge capacity by adding additional crews and engines.
The Budget also includes funding to operate C-130 federal air-tankers.

To spur engagement from innovators in fire safety technologies and more effectively
fight fires, Governor Newsom signed Executive Order N-04-19 to modernize the state
confracting process for goods and technology systems. The “Innovation Procurement
Sprint” will enable CAL FIRE to identify solutions to more effectively detect wildfire starts
and predict the path of wildfires.

2 Letter from Gov. Gavin Newsom to Pres. Donald J. Trump (Jan. 8, 2019), https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2019/01/1.8.19-Joint-Letfter.pdf

8

Page 17 of 98


https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/1.8.19-Joint-Letter.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/1.8.19-Joint-Letter.pdf

Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Figure-04
Additional Recommendations on Prevention?!

Implement Additional Recommendations from the Community Wildfire Prevention and Mitigation
Report: The strike force recommends that the following additional actions from the CAL FIRE
Report be considered and, when appropriate, expedited.

A.

Create Incentives for Fuel Reduction on Private Lands

Small non-industrial private landowners make up approximately 25 percent of
California’s forestland owners and managers, almost twice as much as private industrial
forestlands. These private landowners may not have the resources to actively manage
their forests and are subject to the same fire risk as other Californians.

The Board of Forestry and Fire Protection should consider changes in regulations,
through an emergency rule-making process as needed, to encourage private
landowners to engage in fuel reduction projects.

Develop Methodology to Better Assess At-Risk Communities

The methodology used to identify priority projects provides a robust assessment of near-
term projects that can be implemented before the 2019 fire season. This methodology
should serve as the basis for ongoing assessment methods to evaluate short- and long-
term wildfire risk reduction strategies across the state, with specific attention to
identifying vulnerable communities noting that long-term planning and decision-making
efforts to reduce wildfire risk require consideration of additional factors, including more
robust intfegration of climate risk factors into fire vulnerability assessments.

The Forest Management Task Force should establish an interagency team with
experience in spatial analysis, technology support, environmental management, public
health, climate change, and social vulnerability to develop the methodology
enhancements needed to inform the long-term planning needs of both state and local
agencies.

Jumpstart Workforce Development for Forestry and Fuel Work

The California Natural Resources Agency should identify specific opportunities to
develop and encourage workforce fraining programs.

The goal should be to increase the number of properly trained and compensated
personnel, with an emphasis on providing opportunities for local residents, available to
perform fuel reduction and forest management and restoration work in the private
sector. These fraining programs should be implemented before the end of 2019.

Develop a Mobile Data Collection Tool for Project Reporting

The California Natural Resources Agency should procure a mobile fuel reduction data
collection application to be used by all land management departments and agencies
to increase accuracy and ease of data collection in the field.

21 See CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION, Community Wildfire Prevention & Mitigation Report (Feb. 22,
2019), http://www fire.ca.gov/downloads/45-Day%20Report-FINAL.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019.

9

Page 18 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

E. Develop a Scientific Research Plan for Wildfire Management and Mitigation, with
Funding Recommendation

= The Forest Management Task Force should develop a research plan with prioritized
funding.

= Topics that should be considered include:
e Leverage the Governor's Request for Innovative Ideas (RFI2).

e Best management practices in the face of a changing climate and developing an
understanding of forest health and resilience.

e Use of LIDAR, satellite, and other imagery and elevation data collection, processing
and analysis for incorporation into state management plans and emergency
response.

e Funding for collaborative research to address the full range of wildfire-related
topics. Important research investments could include both basic and applied
research as well as social science to better understand social vulnerability, human
behavior, land use, and policies that support resilience in communities that coexist
with fire and mitigate impacts on life and property.

e Research and development on new WUI building test standards in future research
programs including the use of damage inspection reports from recent fires.

F. Develop Models and Best Management Practices for Evacuation Planning

= CAL FIRE and the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and the
Standardized Emergency Management System Advisory Committee should develop
robust local evacuation planning models for high or very high Fire Hazard Severity Zones
based upon best practices from within California.

Explore Public Private Partnerships and Capital Investment in Forest Waste Management
Businesses: Public-private partnerships that find secondary uses for forest waste and increase
fuel reduction can be a constructive part of the solution. Fostering innovation and
entrepreneurship, these could include biomass facilities, especially those that use the energy
on-site or as an “alternate fuel” for electric vehicles, cross-laminated timber using beetle kill
wood, wood chips or pellets, or composting practices for soil restoration.

Expanding small scale businesses around forest waste, like micro-mills or carpentry using “Alpine
Blue" (beetle kill) wood, will help scale-up forest treatment on small, private land. The strike
force recommends that the Natural Resources Agency explore how best to facilitate these
types of partnerships, recognizing the critical role they play in both forest management and
community economic development.

Building Safer Utilities

The state’s most destructive wildfires have been sparked by ufilities. Electrical fires tend
to ignite during extreme wind events in remote areas with limited access for first
responders. To reduce the overall risk of catastrophic wildfires for vulnerable
communities, public and private utilities must make needed investments in grid
hardening, vegetation management, and fire detection technologies.

10

Page 19 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Current Process for Utility Safety Investment

Regulatory review of safety investments follows the same general approach as discussed
in Part 4 of this Report. Historically, this meant that investment in fire safety and mitigation
was driven largely by the utilities. The California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)
adopted safety regulations for overhead electrical systems in Rule 35 of CPUC General
Order 95. Utilities were required to comply with those regulations but set their own
priorities for safety investment.

This largely utility-defined fire mitigation program resulted in inconsistencies in investment
among the state’s investor-owned utilities. SDG&E engaged in a robust fire mitigation
and safety program after experiencing devastating fires in its service territory in 2007 and
has become a recognized leader in wildfire safety.

More recently, SCE implemented a wildfire safety program designed to mitigate the
challenges of wildfires, including the development of operational practices and
inspections, vegetation management activities, and community outreach.

PG&E has begun to implement wildfire safety measures, but its efforts lag behind the
other IOUs, which is particularly troubling given that it serves 40 percent of California’s
utility customers and many counties in high-risk areas.

CPUC and Wildfire Mitigation Plans

As the scale of utility-sparked wildfires increased, the CPUC, through statutory changes
and on its own initiative, increased oversight of utility wildfire mitigation efforts. Each IOU
is now required to prepare and submit a wildfire mitigation plan (WMP) annually to the
CPUC for review and approval.2 The CPUC, in consultation with CAL FIRE, will evaluate
the WMPs.23 As part of this process, the CPUC held a public workshop and two days of
technical workshops on wildfire mitigation. A comparison of the WMPs submitted by
PG&E, SCE and SDG&E is attached as Annex A to this Report. The CPUC expects to
approve the WMPs in May 2019 and thereafter oversee compliance with the WMPs. The
CPUC intends to develop and refine the content of and process for review and
implementation of wildfire mitigation plans to be filed in future years.

While substantial efforts are underway to build safer utilities, the strike force has identified
areas forimmediate improvement.

Recommendations

Establish a More Rigorous WMP Process: The WMP requirements should be revised to
include a section on long-term fire management and a process to ensure faster
compliance with the proposed plan. WMPs should also include specific performance-
based risk mitigation metrics that are independently and scientifically verified as well as

2 Cal. P.U.C. § 8386.

2 The |OUs that are required to submit WMPs are PG&E, SCE, SDG&E, Liberty Utilities/CalPeco Electric, Bear Valley Electric
Service, and Pacific Power.

11

Page 20 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

cost-effective. Further, to hold IOUs accountable, California should consider putting in
place an auditing system tied to financial incentives.

Safety Incentives: Consider other CPUC reforms to better align IOU incentives with
safety, including:

= Adjust the allowed return on equity (ROE) based on wildfire safety performance

= Align compensation and stock options of executives with wildfire safety
performance

= Make Board composition contingent on wildfire safety performance
= Require Board-level reporting to CPUC on wildfire safety issues

Invest in Technology and Innovation: New technologies, including weather stations,
drones, and artificial intelligence have tfremendous potential as tools to more
effectively prevent, detect and respond to wildfires. The CPUC convened the state's
first Wildfire Technology Innovation Summit in March 2019 to gather national and
international thought leaders and practitioners from state and local governments,
academiaq, industry and other areas to inform and collaborate as to innovative
technological solutions to wildfire risk, including:

= Statewide deployment of weather stations and cameras paired with
meteorology and fire behavior modeling

= Artificial Intelligence-based visual recognition technology to analyze satellite
imagery to determine fuel conditions and vegetation risks in proximity to utility
lines

= Fire modeling tools to support all fire departments and emergency responders
across the state

= Machine learning and automation inspections for increased safety assurance
and regulatory compliance

=  Widespread adoption of aerial patrols, LIDAR and advanced imaging for
vegetation management and utility infrastructure inspections

Update Models to Reflect Climate Change: Climate change has rendered many
assumptions about California’s climate outdated. Historical records for humidity,
wind, rain, and temperature are regularly broken. CPUC regulations—such as
General Order 95 governing electrical lines—are premised on historical climate
trends which may no longer be accurate. The state should work with experts to
update their models on climate change, using the existing Adaptation
Clearinghouse and Climate Assessment process as a central location for data, maps,
and information. The state should also facilitate cross-learning with utilities, which
often make capital investments in physical infrastructure over decades.

More Cost-Effective Financing for Wildfire Mitigation Safety Investments: A critical
element of mitigating utility-sparked wildfires is substantial and immediate investment
in electrical grid safety. The state may be able to mitigate the rate impact of this
investment by offering a lower cost financing alternative through a dedicated rate

12

Page 21 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

stream. Where 10Us fall behind on making needed investments, a reduced return on
equity for this deferred maintenance can further reduce ratepayer impact.

Emergency Response

In a matter of hours, 52,000 people from rural Paradise and surrounding communities
evacuated onto roads built for a fraction of that capacity and converged on Chico,
overwhelming the recovery system. The scale and speed of catastrophic, wind-driven
wildfires, like the Camp Fire, incapacitate existing emergency response systems, local
infrastructure and planned recovery efforts. Many California communities designed their
fire emergency response and recovery systems decades ago, using old technology and
outdated fire modelling. A clear overhaul of the California emergency response systems
and the underlying infrastructure is needed.

The lack of broadband in rural communities and access to cell service make it difficult to
communicate clear emergency evacuation orders to residents or locate residents who
are in trouble. Roads in rural counties were often designed around old gold-rush tracks
that were not designed to accommodate the number of residents using those roads, the
ability of emergency vehicles to access the roads, or the need for defensible space.
Evacuation plans assume that residents can evacuate and do not identify safe havens
and shelter-in-place options for residents.

The state should partner with local government to encourage updates to local
emergency plans, to increase resident awareness of those plans, and to otherwise
improve emergency prevention and response efforts. Further, the state should
encourage local governments to adopt recently issued guidelines to improve
communications during an emergency.

On February 13, the Governor signed AB 72 (Assembly Committee on Budget, Chapter 1,
Statutes of 2019), which appropriated $50 million for an emergency preparedness
campaign focused primarily on California’s most vulnerable populations, including the
elderly, disabled, and those in disadvantaged communities. The California for All
Emergency Preparedness Campaign—a joint initiative between California Volunteers
and Cal OES—will augment the efforts of first responders by ensuring at least one million
of the most vulnerable Californians are connected to culturally and linguistically
competent support.

The Emergency Preparedness Campaign will provide:

e $24.25 million in grants to community-based organizations across the state to prepare
residents for natural disasters through education and other resources designed to
bolster resiliency.

e $12.6 million to support community efforts to build resiliency and respond to disasters
by dispatching expert disaster teams to key regions and expanding citizen
emergency response teams (CERT).

e $13.15 million to assist community groups in the development of a linguistically and
culturally appropriate public awareness and outreach campaign, directed
specifically at the most vulnerable California communities.

13

Page 22 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Recommendations

e Governor's Emergency Preparedness Summit: By the end of June 2019, Cal OES, in
partnership with the League of California Cities and the California State Association
of Counties, will convene first responders, government agencies, local governments,
community residents, and technical experts to develop plans for the state’s
emergency preparedness. The summit will highlight best practices of local
communities, share resources that have worked around the world, and develop the
networks necessary for ongoing preparedness improvements.

e Develop Models and Best Management Practices for Evacuation Planning:_Cal OES,
in collaboration with CAL FIRE, the Standardized Emergency Management System
Advisory Committee, and local governments should develop evacuation planning
models for high or very high Fire Hazard Severity Zones based upon best practices.
These models can be a tool for local governments to use when developing location
specific evacuation plans. Cal OES should consider how adoption of these models
can be incorporated into County Operational Area plans of jurisdictions that also
receive FEMA program grant dollars.

¢ Develop Methodology to Better Assess Communities At-Risk: The Forest
Management Task Force should establish an inferagency team with experience in
spatial analysis, technology support, environmental management, public health,
climate change, and social vulnerability to develop methodology improvements to
inform the long-term planning needs of both state and local agencies.

Land Use, Building Codes, and Community Resilience

According to the Fourth Climate Assessment, the average area burned statewide will
increase by an estimated 77 percent by 2100. At the same time, the housing
affordability crisis is forcing more Californians to move farther from urban areas, and
often into high-risk areas. An additional outcome of these land use patterns is the year-
by-year increase in driving, or “vehicle miles traveled” (VMT), which in turn increases
carbon emissions and vehicle pollution across the states. California’s housing
affordability crisis is increasingly fueling the dangers of climate change and wildfire.
Reducing fire risk to these areas will require changes in how higher-risk areas are
designed, planned, built, served by utilities, and allowed to grow, and will require people
across the state to participate in the solution.

The Governor has made housing production and affordability a key priority. California
already has strong standards to reduce VMT. The strike force recommends that at the
state and regional level, governments and planners incorporate CAL FIRE's fire risk
projections and the fire projection information in the Adaptation Clearinghouse and
Fourth Climate Assessment into short-term and long-term planning, and begin to de-
prioritize new development in areas of the most extreme fire risk. In turn, more urban and
lower-risk regions in the state must prioritize increasing infill development and overall
housing production.

California has made progress in developing and adopting stringent wildland building
codes. Since 2008, new construction in California’s wildlands must use ember-resistant
building materials. For homes built before the 2008 standards, CAL FIRE is working to

14

Page 23 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

develop a list of low-cost retrofit steps homeowners can take. In addition, the Office of
the State Fire Marshal (OSFM) maintains an advisory committee of fire and building
officials that continuously considers building code updates to improve fire safety. Most
recently, OSFM advanced building code changes including sealing of garage door
gaps, sealing skylights and safety improvements to outbuildings.

Developing new housing in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones presents challenges.
Since 2015, CAL FIRE has assisted local governments in land use planning. CAL FIRE is
working to identify subdivisions at significant fire risk without secondary evacuation routes
and to make recommendations to improve access.

Homeowners are encouraged to actively maintain defensible space, which is defined
as a minimum 100-foot area around a home. Maintenance is an ongoing task. California
inspected more than 217,600 homes for defensible space compliance in 2017-2018
alone.

It is critical that roads and other infrastructure be more fire defensible and evacuation
ready for the populations in the WUI. All levels of government must establish clear
contingency plans with local communities to identify and create temporary refuge
areas and shelter-in-place procedures to help fire evacuees survive when unable to
escape a wildfire.

Cal OES, in coordination with local communities and the Standardized Emergency
Management System Advisory Committee, should consider developing local
evacuation planning models for high or very high fire hazard severity zones based on
best practices in California.

Recommendations

e Prioritize Building In Less Fire-Prone Areas: The strike force recommends that at the
regional level, governments and planners incorporate CAL FIRE's fire risk projections
and the fire projection information in the Adaptation Clearinghouse and Fourth
Climate Assessment into short- and long-term planning, and consider how to
encourage more urban and lower-risk regions in the state to provide an alternative
for those otherwise shut out of the state’s housing market.

¢ Local General Planning: The strike force recommends that the safety element of
local general plans be strengthened in high-risk areas, specifically for local
governments to include fire risk projections into general and specific plans, including
through zoning and design standards. Additionally, OPR should prioritize providing
technical assistance support to these communities, many of which are rural and lack
planning resources.

e Cost-Effective Home Retrofits: While California has stringent building standards and
requirements for defensible space, the intensity of the wildfire threat in California now
warrants higher levels of fortitude.

= CAL FIRE should consider options to encourage cost-effective home
hardening to create fire resistant structures within the WUI and with a focus on
vulnerable communities.

15

Page 24 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

= The Forest Management Task Force should work with the Department of
Insurance to seek input from the insurance industry on potential rebates or
incentives for homeowners.

= CAL FIRE and the Department of Housing and Community Development
should develop a list of low-cost retrofits that provide comprehensive fire risk
reduction to protect structures from fires spreading from adjacent structures or
vegetation and to prevent vegetation from spreading fires to adjacent
structures.

= Consideration should be given to implementing a funding mechanism to assist
individuals with cost-effective home retrofits. The model used by the California
Earthquake Authority provides an example of such a mechanism.

o Defensible Space and Forest and Rangeland Protection: Compliance and
enforcement is key to ensure that defensible space standards are met. CAL FIRE
should review and make recommendations to increase defensible space.

16

Page 25 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Part 2: Mitigating Climate Change through Clean
Energy Policies

California’s recent experience with catastrophic wildfires confirms the critical
importance of climate change mitigation efforts. As discussed in Part 1 of this report, the
devastating impacts of climate change, predicted for years, are now a reality. As the
state moves quickly to respond to these impacts and become more resilient, we must
remain focused on addressing climate change through clean energy policy.

The state’s IOUs have played a significant role in moving California away from fossil
fuels—from enabling the renewable energy markets to mature with continuing
decreasing costs to carrying out energy efficiency mandates and demand response
and storage programs. While other retail providers have entered the energy market and
helped advance clean energy, IOUs still play a critical role in the state’s efforts to
address climate change. To continue the state’s progress in reducing greenhouse gas
emissions in the energy sector, California needs investment-worthy IOUs.

California’s efforts to mitigate and adapt to climate change must remain an
overarching priority for the state and for the IOUs. Action must be taken to facilitate
progress toward a 100 percent clean energy grid. We also must ensure that the state’s
current system of oversight keeps up with the evolving energy market so that reliability,
affordability, and continued progress toward California’s climate goals is not
compromised.

While working to increase carbon-free energy resources, utilities are also improving
wildfire prevention and safety planning practices. Investments in safety at a level
necessary to stay ahead of volatile climate conditions come at a cost, and this cost is
being incurred at a time when maintaining low electricity rates is vital to meeting
California’s climate goals, as the next steps in carbon reduction involve electrifying the
transportation and building sectors of the economy.

Safety investments have many benefits. A modern transmission and distribution system
will create high-quality jobs and long-term economic stability, in addition to making us
more resilient to the impacts of climate change and protecting the millions of residents
living in fire-prone areas.

Renewable Energy Development

California has made extraordinary progress in meeting its energy sector climate goals.
The state is a leader in replacing conventional forms of electric generation with cleaner
sources using wind, solar, and other renewable resources instead of fossil fuels. Currently
approximately 34 percent of retail electric sales are served by renewable resources and
over 55 percent of sales are covered by carbon-free resources, including hydroelectric
and nuclear energy. Figure-05 illustrates the progress toward renewable and carbon-
free energy development.

17

Page 26 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Figure-05
: State Carbon-Free Energy :
I Goals I
1 100% I
I Actual ! :
I statutory Target : :
| |
| |
| |
| |
I 60% 1
: :
I 50% :
| |
34% : :
wn 2% PR pm | |
22%  22% ° I I
| |
I I I I I I I
| |
| |
| |
| |
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 I 2006 2030 2045 |
I

California’s renewable energy industry is a powerful economic force in the state. Wind
and solar energy projects brought over $70 billion in capital investments to California,
establishing the state as a leader in renewable generation and spurring broader
innovations.?* Future electrification of buildings and transportation offers even more
benefits, as those sectors represent the most cost-effective opportunities to
decarbonize.?

Over $22 billion in clean technology venture capital funding was invested in California
from 2007 to 2017.26 One 2015 study shows that from 2003-2014, approximately 52,000
jobs were created in California due to the construction of renewable energy facilities.?”
The construction of those facilities also created and facilitated a number of indirect jobs
and opportunities. In total, approximately 130,000 jobs were created. The study also
projected that increasing California’s renewable portfolio standard to 50 percent could

24 AMERICAN WIND ENERGY ASSOCIATION, Wind Energy in California,
https://www.awea.org/Awea/media/Resources/StateFactSheets/California.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019); SOLAR ENERGY
INDUSTRIES ASSOCIATION, Solar State By State, https://www.seia.org/states-map (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

25 California Energy Commission, Deep Decarbonization in a High Renewables Future, (June 2018),
https://www.ethree.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Deep_Decarbonization_in_a_High_Renewables_Future_ CEC-500-
2018-012-1.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

26 Next 10, 2018 California Green Innovation Index (10t Ed.), (2016) (https://www.next10.org/sites/default/files/2018-ca-
green-innovation-index.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

27 JC BERKELEY LABOR CENTR., INST. FOR RESEARCH ON LABOR AND EMPLOY'T., Job Impacts of California’s Existing and Proposed
Renewables Portfolio Standard, (Aug. 2015), laborcenter.berkeley.edu/pdf/2015/job-impacts-ca-rps.pdf (last visited Apr.
10, 2019).

18

Page 27 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

create an additional 354,000 to 429,000 direct jobs from the construction of new
renewable generation, and hundreds of thousands of indirect jobs and opportunities.

Today, we have both a challenge and an opportunity: a challenge to continue progress
toward 100 percent carbon-free energy generation and an opportunity to transform the
state’s economy. During this transition period, we need to make sure we have effective
tools and protections to manage costs to consumers, ensure reliability, and reduce risks.

Challenges in the Evolving Electric Sector

Maintaining Reliability with Less Centralized Control

As more |OU customers install rooftop solar and storage, migrate to community choice
aggregators (CCAs) and purchase energy from energy service providers (ESPs), IOUs are
focusing on providing electric fransmission and distribution service. New CCAs and ESPs
are entering the market, acquiring energy in the wholesale market from electric
generating companies, and selling energy to customers at retail. As a result, IOUs
increasingly are becoming “poles and wires”--companies that are responsible for
constructing, maintaining, and operating the facilities over which electric energy is
delivered to customers. Figure-06 illustrates the CCA load growth over time.

Figure-06
CCA Load Growth Over Time28 Market Share by LSE Type28
50,000
DCE IEE'
40,000

30,000

s 2018
O
20,000
64%
10,000
[l 'ous [l ccas [ Other
0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
MCE: MCE Clean Energy RCEA: Redwood Coast Energy
SCP: Sonoma Clean Power PIO: Pioneer Community Energy
LCE: Lancaster Choice Energy DCE: Dessert Community Energy

Between rooftop solar, Community Choice Aggregators (CCAs) and Direct Access providers (ESPs), as much
as 85% of Investor Owned Utility (IOU) retail electric load will be effectively unbundled and served by a non-
IOU source or provider by the middle of the 2020s".

The IOUs delivery electricity and perform other important functions, such as metering
and billing (including collecting fees from consumers to fund certain public-interest
programs). CCAs typically do not have credit ratings which can limit their ability to

2 See UCLA Luskin Center for Innovation’s The Growth in Community Choice Aggregation, dated July 2018. CCA annual
load data from each CCA's respective implementation plan. “Other” category represents the difference between the
California Energy Commission’s statewide load estimation and the IOU and CCA loads.

19

Page 28 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

obtain the financing necessary to enter into long-term contracts at the scale needed to
achieve a zero-carbon grid by 2045 and to meet Resource Adequacy (RA)
requirements.

Meeting Provider of Last Resort (POLR) Obligations

Customers who choose not to obtain retail service from a CCA or an ESP, or who may
be subject to a failure by a CCA or ESP to provide service, currently are protected by
the requirement that an IOU must step in to provide energy under the IOUs’ POLR
obligation.?? If IOUs become primarily “poles and wires” businesses, it raises the question
as to whether the IOUs should continue to provide POLR service or whether another
entity should assume this responsibility.

Avoiding Significant Rate Increases and Addressing the Need for Investment

Major investments will be needed in the electric fransmission and distribution system in
Cadlifornia to make the system less susceptible to wildfires, to otherwise modernize it, and
to accommodate changes in generation and demand. It will be important to have
financially strong utilities so they can attract the capital necessary to make these
investments at low rates (since the cost of capital is passed along to consumers).
Keeping capital costs down is particularly important in light of potential increases in
other costs, including the cost of large wildfire liabilities.

Continuing Progress in Reducing Certain Carbon Emissions

As shown in Figure-07 below, California has made significant progress in reducing
carbon emissions. In the energy sector, the IOUs have been instrumental in reducing
carbon emissions. Their long-term contracts for renewable energy resources have driven
prices down as new technologies have been deployed at commercial scale. Some
CCAs have more aggressive renewable targets than the I0OUs, and benefit from the
early IOU renewables projects because they are benefitting from today’s lower solar
and wind energy prices. New CCAs are required to collect an adjustment charge from
their customers to reflect the cost of older, long-term contracts that IOUs entered info on
their behalf.

22 The IOUs have a duty to provide distribution service on a non-discriminatory basis to the customers in their service territory.
This currently includes the POLR obligation fo sell energy at retail to those customers who opt out of obtaining service from
a CCA. This POLR obligation also would extend to any situation in which a CCA or ESP were fo cease providing service for
some reason such as in the case of a bankruptcy.

20

Page 29 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Figure-07
California Greenhouse Gas Emissions by Sector3®

million tons carbon dioxide (CO2) equivalent

i3
500 cla
2020 target:
*os .. 4 EQUal to 1990 level
400
. 2030 target:

300 " o 0% below 190 level
200
100 electric power

industrial 2050 goal: e

transportation 20% below 1990 level

D T T T T
1990 2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 2050

Distributed Resources

California utilities provide a means to implement various Distributed Energy Resources
(DER) initiatives throughout the state.3! California has experienced phenomenal growth
in electric generation by customers on a distributed basis (in contfrast to obtaining
energy from large, central generating stations), particularly in the form of rooftop solar
generation. In the future, it is expected that more customers will install battery storage on
a distributed basis.

Many of these programs grew as a result of state mandates carried out by IOUs. Few of
the programs (with the notable exception of net energy metering) directly involve CCAs,
ESPs or publicly-owned utilities (POUs). Additionally, the California Independent System
Operator (CAISO) has developed an innovative mechanism to allow distributed
resources to join fogether and bid into the wholesale market, providing revenue for
distributed resources as well as a benefit to the electrical system. Distributed resources,
however, contribute to the fragmentation of the energy supply, and need to be
managed to ensure they continue to benefit the electricity system.

Adapting to Intermittent Electric Generation

Today, almost two-thirds of California’s renewable energy generation capacity is from
intermittent sources such as wind and solar. The output from these sources vary

30 See U.S. Energy Information Administration, based on California Air Resources Board data.

31 Those initiatives include (i) providing rebates to customers that install self-generation facilities or storage; (i) these are
funded by a charge that the I0OUs collect from their consumers; mandating that IOUs (and to a lesser extent CCAs and
POUs) directly procure battery storage technologies that connect at the distribution grid level; and (iii) developing pilot
projects to test the ability of DER to offset the need to build new distribution lines; and developing programs within the RPS
that target distributed solar resources.

21

Page 30 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

depending on the weather, season, and time of day. This imposes challenges on electric
grid operations. Generation output from wind and solar sources is not controlled by the
grid operator and can increase or decline rapidly, which requires adjustments in
generation from other sources (or adjustments in demand) to keep supply in balance
with demand. In particular, large amounts of low-cost solar electric generation during
the middle of the day has created a situation where on some days there can be an
overproduction of electricity and on many days generation from other sources must
ramp up rapidly in the afternoon.

Overproduction can be a good problem to have since that energy, coupled with the
right policies, can be harnessed to electrify other parts of the economy, such as
transportation and buildings. A diverse portfolio of renewable resources and policies,
including time-of-use rates, demand response programs, storage, energy efficiency,
increased regional coordination, and electric vehicle charging, will continue to be
critical to reduce the need for the carbon-intensive resources generally used to meet
the afternoon ramp and overnight demand.

Reliability

Several factors, including flat demand for electricity and growth in renewable energy
generation, have confributed to substantial retirements of fossil-fueled electric
generation (mainly natural gas). Stricter environmental standards have accelerated this
frend. Yet flexible resources continue to be needed in the near term to quickly ramp up
as solar generation resources go off-line or load increases, and during extended cloudy
periods. Over the long-term, it will be critical to ensure that cost-effective clean energy
resources are available for reliability and other grid services.

Resource Adequacy Requirements

California has responded to energy shortages in the past by requiring that load-serving
entities (LSEs) contract to purchase sufficient electric generation (or distributed resources
or storage) to meet their forecasted peak demand plus a pre-set reserve margin.
Several factors caused some LSEs to experience difficulty meeting their RA
requirements.32 Some LSEs have had to obtain temporary waivers from the CPUC and
others have been penalized. Additionally, IOUs have taken on procurement of some
resources needed for reliability that other LSEs may not want to procure. In some cases,
the CPUC required IOUs to enter into long-term contracts needed for reliability, including
contracts for battery storage. This option is less effective as IOUs have fewer and fewer
retail customers.

Maintaining Public Purpose Programs; Promoting Energy Efficiency and Demand
Response.

California has been a leader in energy efficiency, with electricity use per capita
remaining virtually flat over the past four decades despite substantial economic growth

32 Challenges in the RA market include (i) a growing number of LSE competing fo buy the same existing resources, (i) a
shrinking pool of resources LSE can procure as the planned retirement dates of older natural gas plants approach, and {iii)
the inability/unwillingness of LSEs to enter into long-term contracts for some needed resources.

22

Page 31 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

during that period.® The state has had success with programs that align the incentives of
utilities and consumers in using less energy, including programs providing financial
incentives or rebates, incorporating efficiency requirements in various codes and
standards, and providing education and technical assistance.

Demand response programs, which provide incentives for customers to adjust their
consumption during certain periods, have also been successful. Similarly, time-of-use
rates provide incentives for customers to adjust their energy use to optimize renewable
resources. New demand response programs are being developed that can increase
loads at times when there is an abundance of solar generation.

California has relied on the IOUs to implement public-purpose programs to fund energy
efficiency and demand response, as well as reducing rates for low-income customers
and renewable energy incentives. If the IOUs become “poles and wires” companies, it
will be important to ensure that this change does not threaten these public-purpose
programs.

Electric Vehicle Integration

A critical component of California's efforts to meet its goals to reduce carbon emissions
is to replace vehicles that use gasoline or diesel fuel with electric vehicles or hydrogen
vehicles. The CPUC and other agencies in California support this effort by promoting
deployment of charging stations, providing rate incentives (encouraging charging at
off-peak hours), and other programs. Growth in vehicle electrification will result in
increases in electric consumption over time and further increase the dependence of
Californians on the electrical grid and the utilities that own and operate it. Over half of
California’s greenhouse gas emissions are from the transportation sector. Thus, the
success of transportation electrification programs is essential to meeting the state’s
climate goals, and will depend on electricity being clean and available, and a less
expensive option to fuel vehicles than gasoline. This provides one justification, among
many, for efforts to minimize increases to electric rates. Figure-08 illustrates the California
vehicle forecast.

33 Energy efficiency helps to reduce the need for electric generation, including from sources that emit carbon and other
greenhouse gases. Targeted energy efficiency, as well as programs such as demand response and time-of-use pricing, fo
reduce energy use at periods of high prices or demand, contributes to a more reliable electric grid with less need for
physical improvements to the grid.

23

Page 32 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Figure-08
California Electric Vehicle Adoption Forecast34

Increasing growth S-million

50% j'.t electric vehicle scenario
f (50% share by 2030)
I
/
40% /
e I . 3
a ] 7
& 1.7 =
] /
= 30% A!/
w
)
] P
5 i
> - s
w  20% s
& s
u -~
& - -
=2 San Jose area - s
(7] “‘_,.-‘ _.-i",
-
10% San Francisco r,__-"':__...--""
area _._,,;_,_,.-#'_'_‘____.-OMinimum ZEW compliance
maEET=——T (8% share in 2025)
California state average
D%
2010 2015 2020 2025 2030

Recommendations

Evaluate Resource Adequacy Back-Stop Options Through the Legislative Process:
Procurement by the IOUs, under supervision by the CPUC, has been effective over
time. But as the state transitions to more LSEs, gaps and inefficiencies could emerge.
To manage this transition, new procurement support models, including a new state
procurement entity that could enter into long-term contracts, provide credit support
or otherwise facilitate purchases of electric energy, should be explored. Procurement
support could have a number of benefits, including providing back stop resource
adequacy procurement and ancillary services needed to support reliability. To
maintain cost-effectiveness and achieve rate benefits, it will be important to
continue to focus on procurement through integrated resource planning or a similar
framework. In addition, the POLR obligation discussed above and the responsibility
for implementing public purpose programs could also be examined.

Increase Transparency for Load-Serving Entities and State Coordination of
Procurement: Customers in California should have access to complete and
accurate information about the energy they are procuring, regardless of whether the
procurement is from an IOU, POU, CCA, or ESP. This should include transparent
information about prices, compliance with resource adequacy requirements, and
the sources of energy being procured (including reliance on renewable energy
sources). To the extent that customers have a choice regarding their retail electric
provider, fransparency is required so that they are able to make informed choices.
Of course, transparency also is required for the appropriate government agencies to

34 See International Council on Clean Transportation, May 2018 Briefing.

24

Page 33 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

ensure compliance with applicable RPS, resource adequacy, and other
requirements. Additionally, new programs or legislation may be needed for
coordination of purchasing by CCAs and ESPs to ensure they continue to meet
California’s standards for integrated resource planning, resource adequacy, clean
energy progress, consumer protection, and hedging risk.

e Addressing Variability in Generation and Consumption: Addressing variability in
electric generation and consumption will require efforts on a number of fronts. The
afternoon ramp—the period when solar and wind energy decline and demand goes
up—is increasing. Traditionally, flexible resources, such as natural gas-fired
generators, have been used to provide areserve margin, to ensure that generation
and consumption stay in balance, and to provide other ancillary services needed for
reliability. In the near term, a limited number of natural gas resources are still needed.
In the longer term, more innovative solutions will be required. Further progress in fime-
of-use rates, demand response programs, storage, energy efficiency, increased
regional coordination, and electric vehicle charging can help to ensure that
demand at any given moment is at a level that can be accommodated by the
amount of available electric generation. Proper infrastructure and incentives can be
developed to facilitate and encourage integration of electric vehicles into the
electric system in a manner that can enhance reliability and reduce costs. The strike
force recommends that the CPUC use its Infegrated Resource Planning process and
other related proceedings to address these issues.

25

Page 34 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Part 3: Fair Allocation of Catastrophic Wildfire Damages

Climate change, forest management practices, and real estate development patterns
in the WUI have dramatically increased the risk and magnitude of wildfire damage. All
stakeholders, public and private, must invest in mitigation, suppression and emergency
response to reduce the incidence of catastrophic fire and to protect lives and property.
At the same time, communities need electricity—including communities in remote, high
fire-risk areas. As long as electrical lines run through tinder-dry forests, California can
mitigate but not eliminate utility-sparked fires. California also must support wildfire victims
and communities as they work to rebuild. These often competing imperatives require a
new policy framework to responsibly and fairly allocate the cost of wildfire damage in
an era of climate change. No single stakeholder created this crisis, and no single
stakeholder should bear its full cost.

Developing workable solutions to equitably share the burden of compensating victims
for wildfire damages is made more challenging by uncertainty regarding the future
effects of climate change and the efficacy of mitigation efforts. The staggering wildfire
damages of 2017 and 2018 highlight the potential severity of wildfires in the future.

Figure-09
Wildfire Damages?3s
25

B Nominal overall losses

e Normalized overall losses (in 2017 values)

Dollars in Billions

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

We do not know whether this magnitude of damage is a new normal, or if recent years
were aberrational. Experts consulted by the strike force believe climate change,
development patterns, deferred utility equipment maintenance, and other factors
suggest much heightened risk going forward but predicting how much risk and how

35 Climate Changes Increases Wildfire Risk

26

Page 35 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

consistently is more difficult. There is also uncertainty about the level of success we can
expect in reducing the frequency and severity of wildfires.

Another challenge to a durable solution is that liability for wildfires ignited by utility
equipment is governed by California’s inverse condemnation law, which holds a ufility
strictly liable for wildfire damages if the ufility’s equipment ignites a wildfire, even if the
utility’s design and maintenance of infrastructure were not unreasonable or negligent.
While a utility faces strict liability for all damages caused by its equipment, it can recover
those costs through rates only by proving to the CPUC that its conduct was prudent. This
regime—strict liability for wildfire damage coupled with uncertain ability to recover those
damages in rates—increases the risk of bankrupt utilities, which in turn drives up costs for
consumers, threatens fair recoveries for fire victims, undermines the state’s ability to
mitigate and adapt to climate change, and creates uncertainty for utility employees
and contractors.

Under the status quo, all parties lose — wildfire victims, energy consumers, and
Californians committed to addressing climate change. Victims face a great deal of
uncertainty and diminished ability to be compensated for their losses and harm.
Customers face rising rates and instability. California’s ability to achieve its climate goals
is frustrated. Utility vendors and employees face uncertainty and likely significant losses.
Bottom line --- utilities in or on the verge of bankruptcy are not good for Californians, for
economic growth or for the state’s future.

Strike Force Deliberations

The strike force has identified and intensively researched several approaches to address
wildfire liabilities. Each of the approaches evaluated by the strike force has benefits and
tradeoffs.

Much work remains to be done to evaluate these concepts and determine which
alternative or combination of alternatives will best support safe, reliable, and affordable
energy for Californians, further clean energy goals, and enable fair freatment for wildfire
victims. The strike force recommends that the Commission on Catastrophic Wildfire Cost
and Recovery (SB 901 Commission) jointly appointed by the Governor and the
Legislature, evaluate these concepts and report back to the Governor and the
Legislature on its findings.

Principles Underlying a New Approach to Stabilizing and Sharing Costs

California’s approach to wildfire mitigation must be grounded in principles that further
the imperative to provide safe, reliable, and affordable power on a sustainable basis. To
that end, the strike force has identified the following principles against which any
proposal must be measured:

1. Maintaining Safe, Reliable, and Affordable Power. California residents and businesses
require a safe and reliable electrical system, the achievement of which requires
ongoing investment in new equipment, systems, and workforce. At the same time,
steep rate increases would have adverse consequences for consumers, businesses,
and California’s climate goals. Thus, rate increases must be mitigated.

27

Page 36 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

2. Hold Utilities Accountable to Prioritize Safety. Any changes in the liability rules should
provide incentives for utilities and their management to prioritize and invest in safety
and impose penalties for failure to do so. Any changes also must continue to hold a
utility’s shareholders—not its customers—responsible for failures to operate safely.

3. Treat Wildfire Victims Fairly. California wildfire victims deserve fair disposition of their
claims so that they can move forward with their lives.

4. Require Equitable Stakeholder Contributions. The burdens of wildfire damages
brought on by climate change are too great to be borne by any one stakeholder.
A fair distribution of the burden requires utilities (ratepayers and investors), insurance
companies, local governments, and attorneys representing victims to contribute.

5. Reduce Overall Costs. We must reduce wildfire damages as well as the financial
claims that arise from them. This means prioritizing and paying for safety. It also
means structuring the process by which claims are made and paid to assure the
highest proportion of resources to pay for the actual losses victims suffer. And it
means not creating a “free rider” problem or creating incentives for people not to
act responsibly (e.g. by not properly insuring property against the risk of fire
damages).

6. Promote California’s Clean Energy Goals. Any solution must be consistent with
California’s long-term climate and clean energy goals and minimize the risk that
wildfire liabilities will prevent utilities from having the resources to advance those
goals, both in the near-term and over time.

7. Recognize the Confribution of Taxpayers. As described elsewhere, taxpayers have
substantially increased their contribution to mitigating fire risk and fighting fires when
they ignite. Any consideration of a fair burden of costs must recognize the
substantial contribution the state and ifs taxpayers have already made and are
confinuing to make.

Current Framework for Allocating Costs of Utility-Caused Wildfires

In California, when a utility's equipment causes a wildfire, the utility may be held liable to
pay for damages through (1) inverse condemnation lawsuits for property damages3¢
brought by property owners or insurance companies (which seek compensation for
payments they make to insured property owners); (2) tort lawsuits by a harmed party;
and/or (3) recovery of fire suppression costs from third parties.3” California’s application

36 Inverse condemnation is limited to property damage caused by utility equipment, so not all utility wildfire liabilities are
actionable under inverse condemnation. For example, wildfire liabilities caused by a utility company employee, rather
than utility equipment, are not recoverable under inverse condemnation. In practice, litigation pursuing subrogation
recovery will include multiple liability theories, including inverse condemnation, some of which apply a strict liability
standard and some of which apply other standards, such as negligence.

37 When a utility is found to be a cause of a wildfire, the utility can be required to pay for three primary types of losses: (i)
property damage and damages for personal injury, death, and related impacts, (i) suppression expenditures incurred by
government entities, including Cal FIRE and the United States Forest Service, and (iii) other economic and natural resource
damages. The first two categories are direct costs (e.g. damage to structures, fire-fighting expenditures, injury and
mortality) and are well defined, whereas the third category represents indirect damages (e.g. business interruption,
temporary housing costs).

28

Page 37 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

of inverse condemnation to utilities places 100 percent of the cost of wildfire property
damage on a utility if its equipment caused the fire—regardless of fault and without
consideration of the contributing role of climate change, forest management, land-use
policies and other factors.

California is unique in extending the concept of inverse condemnation to IOUs.38
Nonetheless, California courts have reasoned that “the nature of the California
regulatory scheme demonstrates that the state generally expects a public utility to
conduct its affairs more like a governmental entity than a private corporation.”3 The
primary purpose of inverse condemnation is to spread costs to relieve individuals from
bearing a disproportionate share of the economic burden of a governmental action.

Inverse condemnation claims have two unique features that create challenges for
California’s IOUs:

1. Faultis Irrelevant. In an inverse condemnation claim, the plaintiff need not allege or
prove that the utility behaved unreasonably or negligently. An entity may be held
strictly liable for damages so long as the plaintiff proves that the utility was a
substantial cause of such damage--even if it was only one of several concurrent
causes.

2. Attorney’s Fees and Expenses are Part of the Claim. The California Code of Civil
Procedure provides that in any inverse condemnation proceeding the plaintiff is
entitled to recover the reasonable costs, disbursements, and expenses, including
reasonable attorney’s fees and expert costs.“0 These costs can be substantial.

The combination of strict liability and statutory attorney’s fees exposes California utilities
to significant potential liabilities.

Insurance companies play an important role in the practical application of inverse
condemnation to utilities in California. Insurance companies write insurance and collect
premiums to cover property owners for fire losses. In the event of a fire, the insurance
company pays an insured property owner's claim and absorbs the loss. If the fire was
ignited by a utility’s equipment, the insurance company seeks reimbursement from the
utility for the damage claim it paid to homeowners, typically through an inverse

38 Only Florida and Alabama have applied the doctrine of inverse condemnation to utility companies and only Alabama
has extended the doctrine to privately-owned utilities. Similar to California, under Alabama law, a non-governmental
entity can be subject to a claim for inverse condemnation. As such, in Schultz v. SE. Supply Header, LLC, No. CA 09-0055-
KD-C, 2009 WL 3075671 (S.D. Ala. Aug. 20, 2009), the property owners' claim for inverse condemnation against the private
utility company did not fail by virtue of the utility company's non-governmental status. In that case, the property owners
gave the ufility company a permanent easement to their property for the installation of a natural gas pipeline to run
underground, but in the process of construction, the utility company flooded the property and caused the property
owners' septic system to malfunction, reducing the property to a swamp. Since the utility company was expressly
authorized to exercise the power of eminent domain for installation of the natural gas pipelines, the property owners
could avail themselves of the remedy of inverse condemnation for damage of the property by the company.

3% Barham v. Southern California Edison Company, 74 Cal. App. 4th 744, 753 (1999).
4 CA Civ. Pro. Code § 1036 (2017).

29

Page 38 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

condemnation claim.#4! These claims from the insurance company are known as
subrogation claims.#2

Cost Recovery and Wildfire Damages

While a pubilic utility found liable under inverse condemnation spreads the costs by using
its rate-setting power to pass the costs to customers, investor-owned utilities can recover
inverse condemnation damages in rates only if the CPUC separately determines that
they may do so. California law requires that any rates charged by a utility must be “just
and reasonable”. 43 A utility may pass through and recover non-routine costs as a result
of third-party litigation or inverse condemnation only if the IOU demonstrates to the
CPUC that it acted reasonably and prudently (i.e., met a “prudent manager”
standard).#4

To meet this prudent manager standard in the context of extraordinary wildfire
expenses, the CPUC requires that a utility affirmatively prove that it: (1) behaved
reasonably and prudently in managing its facilities before and during the fire and

(2) behaved reasonably and prudently in settling any litigation claims, if applicable.
The CPUC has wide Iatitude as to the applicable evidentiary standard—typically
applying a preponderance of the evidence standard—which generally requires
evidence that "when weighed with that opposed to it, has more convincing force and
greater probability of truth.”4>

Recent Application of Utility Wildfire Cost Recovery Standards

In October 2007, three large wildfires occurred in the service area of SDG&E. The ignifion
of those fires was attributed to the company’s equipment. After 7 years of litigation,
SDG&E settled legal claims for $2.4 billion in costs and legal fees to resolve third-party
damages arising from the fires. After collecting from other responsible parties and under
liability insurance policies, SDG&E sought recovery from ratepayers for the remaining

41 Inverse condemnation is limited to property damage caused by utility equipment, so not all utility wildfire liabilities are
actionable under inverse condemnation. For example, wildfire liabilities caused by a utility company employee, rather
than utility equipment, are not recoverable under inverse condemnation. In practice, litigation pursuing subrogation
recovery will include multiple liability theories, including inverse condemnation, some of which apply a strict liability
standard and some of which apply other standards, such as negligence.

42 Generally, insurance company subrogation recoveries are not 100 percent reimbursement for claims paid to property
owners. Limited public information suggests that subrogation settlements equal about 50 percent of the claim.
Specifically, SCE’s general auditor stated that wildfire subrogation claims have in the past seftled at “historical levels” of
"around 50 percent” at a meeting of the Commission on Catastrophic Wildfire Cost and Recovery on April 3, 2019.

4 CAL. P.U.C § 451.

44 The prudent manager standard means that “at a particular time any of the practices, methods, and acts engaged in
by a utility follow the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of facts known or which should have been known at the
fime the decision was made.” The prudent manager standard is a standard of care that demonstrates all actions were
well planned and properly supervised and all necessary records are retained. See See In re: San Diego Gas & Electric
Co., Order Denying Application for Decision 17-11-033 at p.5 (Cal. Pu. Util. Comm’n) (Nov. 30, 2017).

45 Decision Implementing a Safety Enhancement Plan and Approval Process, Decision 14-06-007 [D.14-06-007]

30

Page 39 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

$379 million in damages it had paid. In October 2017, the CPUC denied SDG&E’s
request, ruling that the utility had not met required standards of prudency.4é

The CPUC decision in the San Diego case was the first fime a utility had incurred costs
that exceeded its insurance coverage. The decision raised concerns in the capital
markets that investors in California utilities were more exposed to wildfire liabilities than
previously thought.

In late 2017, shortly after the CPUC's decision in the San Diego fires, California suffered
one of its worst wildfire seasons on record. Combined, these events created uncertainty
in the capital markets regarding the safety of investing in California utilities.

Senate Bill 901 (Dodd, Chapter 626, Statutes of 2018) (SB 901)

After the utility market destabilization, California enacted SB 901, which requires the
CPUC to consider “conduct of the electric grid and relevant information submitted into
the commission record” when determining whether a utility is permitted to recover costs
related to wildfires. The statute outlines 12 categories of information for consideration,
which are set forth on Annex B. SB 901 also incorporated a “stress test” that provided the
CPUC additional flexibility to allow utilities to recover their costs in respect of wildfire
liabilities from ratepayers where the denial of cost recovery could negatively impact the
IOUs’ financial condition.

In a cost recovery action, the CPUC must first find that utility equipment ignited the
wildfire. Then the CPUC must determine whether the utility acted prudently both in the
behavior causing the wildfire and in the settlement of any claims. If it acted prudently,
the utility may recover the costs by charging higher rates to customers. If it did not act
prudently, the utility would be required to bear those costs itself, in effect by reducing
the returns paid to its equity investors. SB 901 attempted to provide the CPUC guidance
on application of the cost recovery rules that would create more certainty around cost
recovery.

After passage of SB 901, the credit rating agencies (Moody's, Standard & Poor's and
Fitch) immediately began to downgrade California’s three large IOUs, opining that the
measure failed to adequately address the risks to the utilities’ financial health posed by
inverse condemnation. Two months later, the Camp Fire occurred. Two months after
that, PG&E stated its infention to seek chapter 11 bankruptcy protection.

The rating agencies followed with an additional series of downgrades that now leave SCE
and SDG&E with close to non-investment grade ratings.

46 See Order Denying Application [D. 17-11-033] (Cal. Pu. Util. Comm’n) (Nov. 30, 2017); Order Denying Rehearing of
Decision (D.) 17-11-033 [D. 18-07-025] (Cal. Pub. Util. Comm’n) (July 12, 2018); Order Denying Writ for Review, No. D074417,
Cal. Ct. of Appeal, 4th District, Div. 1 (Nov. 13, 2018)

31

Page 40 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Figure-10
Increasing wildfire risk coupled with uncertainty surrounding cost recovery for wildfire liabilifies has
resulted in credit ratings downgradesfor all California IOUs

-~ (A) 000 (A) 000

BRE+ 1 I Ea 3"
- -3_33 I— aa?

e Caal
CCC .

. Ca

cC -

Jun-17  Sep-17 Dec-17 Mar-18  Jun-13  Sep-18 Dec-18  Mar19 Jun-17  3ep-17 Dec-17 Marl3 Jun-18  Sep-18 Dec-18 Marl¥

Pacific Gas and Electric [PG&E) Southern California Edison [SCE) San Diego Gas & Electric (SDGEAE]
[ ] InvestmentGrade [ ] MNon-nvestmentGrade
| Rafings below BEE. (S&P) orBaas [Moody's) are considered noninvesiment grade |
e o e e e e 1
Cctober, 2017 —Tubbs Fire, the second most destructive November, 2018 — Camyp Fire, the most destructive wildfire in
wildfire in California history, bums 36,810 acres California history, bums 153,336 acres

zovernor Jerry Brown signs SB @ January 14, 201¥ — PG&E announces itsintent to file for bankruptcy,
provi

s outstanding wildfire liabilities iding the required 15 day adwvance notice to their employees

Ratings downgrades increase utilities’ cost of capital (including capital raised for
investment in fire mitigation and safety) and those additional costs are generally passed
on fo consumers.

The capital markets concluded that too much uncertainty regarding cost recovery
remained following passage of SB 901. Their key concerns were that it left the CPUC with
extensive discretion to determine whether catastrophic wildfire damages could be
passed through to the ratepayers.#” In addition, investors raised concerns that SB 901 did
not address the significant time period between the occurrence of a catastrophic
wildfire, the payment of damages arising from that wildfire, and the CPUC’s final

47 California’s cost recovery process contrasts with the framework employed for federally-regulated fransmission rates by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Pursuant to section 205 of the Federal Power Act (FPA), public utility
rates for fransmission services in inferstate commerce must be “just and reasonable,” which includes a requirement that
the utility is prudent in incurring costs. This statutory standard is similar to the standard in the California Public Utilities Code,
however, FERC applies the standard differently than the CPUC applies its similar statutory standard. In practice, FERC
generally presumes that a utility’s expenditures have been prudent unless a third party raises a formal complaint that
casts a serious doubt on the utility's prudency, in which case the utility has the burden to prove that its conduct and
expenditures were prudent. FERC will consider a utility’s conduct prudent if the utility acted as any other reasonable ufility
in ifs position would have acted, given the same circumstances and the same facts known to the company at the time.
FERC precedent in evaluating the prudency standard affords considerable lafitude as FERC, in reviewing a decision, does
not look for a single correct result or require the evaluation of every possible alternative. Thus, the FERC standard is far
more predictable.

32

Page 41 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

determination of whether those payments can be recovered in rates. Under current
timelines, a utility does not file an application for cost recovery until after it resolves all
litigated claims, which in the case of San Diego took more than seven years from the
time of the fires. The CPUC's cost recovery process can take 18 months to two years. This
time lag creates financial stress on a utility which may need to raise additional capital to
pay billions of dollars of wildfire claims without knowing whether it will be able to recover
the costs of that capital in future rate increases. This can lead to lower credit ratings,
higher borrowing costs and, therefore, higher rates paid by utility customers. Ultimately,
as we have seen with PG&E, it can lead a utility to seek protection under the federal
bankruptcy laws.

Consideration of Insurance Impacts

Before discussing potential concepts, it is important to consider the current impact of
climate change and catastrophic wildfire damage on the availability and affordability
of insurance and the risk that any proposed changes to liability for wildfire damage
could exacerbate those impacts.

Insurance pricing and availability is responsive to a very basic principle: as risk increases,
the cost of insurance increases and the availability of insurance coverage decreases.
With record high losses from catastrophic wildfires, insurers are responding by filing for
rate increases and retrenching their coverage eligibility standards. According to the
California Department of Insurance (CDI), many regions of the state face insurance
availability and affordability constraints. This is evidenced by increasing non-renewals
and significant insurance premium increases in the areas of the state affected by
wildfires. Investments that increase resiliency to climate-related catastrophes will add
stability to insurance options. Without affordable insurance, regions throughout the state
will find homes decreasing in value.

Current Trends in Insurance Availability and Affordability

Insurance rates are principally based on recent loss experience. According to CDI, in
California, the loss experience resulting from catastrophes is not loaded directly into the
rates but instead placed in a catastrophe load that is an average of at least 20 years of
catastrophe experience. Despite that fact, rates are beginning to increase.

According to the CDI:

e Carriers have submitted applications to CDI for over 100 rate increases for
homeowners insurance in the last two years, more than double the filings in the
previous two years;

e Homeowners in areas with heightened wildfire risk are receiving double-digit rate
increases;

33

Page 42 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

e There has been a significant uptick in policy counts at the California Fair Access to
Insurance Requirements Plan (FAIR Plan)4é for homes located in areas of high wildfire
risk, by 50 percent in the last five years (from 22,000 policies for homes with wildfire risk
exposures to 33,000 such policies), although the FAIR Plan only insures about 130,000
homes in total out of approximately 13 million residences in the state;

e The number of homeowners who have purchased insurance from surplus lines insurers
has also increased, though the total remains fewer than 60,000 statewide. Surplus
lines coverage is available only fo consumers who cannot find coverage with an
admitted insurer. The rates are not requlated nor is the coverage backed by the
California Insurance Guarantee Association; and

e Consumer complaints about non-renewals in high risk counties have also doubled in
the last two years.

According to CDI, the overall number of adverse actions that are reflected in available
data are relatively low compared to the California homeowners' insurance market as a
whole. After two consecutive years of massive homeowners insurance loss ratios of
insurers—201 percent in 2017 and 170 percent in 2018-there is a sense of urgency about
the decreasing availability and affordability in 2019, especially for regions with high
wildfire risk.

The strike force recommends that the Governor and Legislature, in consultation with the
Insurance Commissioner, consider the following:

e Should allinsurers be obligated to offer insurance to homeowners living in the WUI if
the insured conducts specific wildfire mitigation?

e Should all insurers be obligated to offer reduced rates for those homeowners and
communities that implement prescribed wildfire mitigation measurese

e Should insurers be obligated to offer consumers who are ineligible for a homeowners’
policy either a “difference in conditions” policy or a “premises liability policy” as
complementary coverage for a FAIR Plan fire policy?

e The Cadlifornia Insurance Guarantee Association policy limits have not been
increased for at least two decades. Is it fime to increase the current limit of $500,000
to recognize current construction costse

Concepts for a Solution

The strike force heard from experts and stakeholders about alternative approaches.
Based on this input, research and evaluation of the strengths and weaknesses of
alternative approaches, we identified three concepts for consideration:

e Concept 1: Liguidity-Only Fund. This concept would create a fund to provide
liquidity for utilities to pay wildfire damage claims pending CPUC determination of

48 The FAIR Plan was created in July 1968 as an insurance pool established to assure the availability of basic property
insurance to people who own insurable property in the State of California and who, beyond their control, have been
unable to obtain insurance in the voluntary insurance market. See https://www.cfponet.com.

34

Page 43 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

whether or not those claims are appropriate for cost recovery and may be
coupled with modification of cost recovery standards.

e Concept2: Changing Strict Liability to a Fault-Based Standard. This concept
would involve modification of California’s strict liability standard under inverse
condemnation to one based on fault to balance the need for public
improvements with private harm to individuals.

e Concept 3: Wildfire Fund. This concept would create a wildfire fund coupled
with a revised cost recovery standard to spread the cost of catastrophic wildfires
more broadly among stakeholders.

Given the inherent uncertainty we face and the number of foundational policy
questions that must be addressed, the strike force recommends that the Commission on
Catastrophic Wildfire Cost and Recovery, the Legislature, and the Governor’s strike force
continue working over the next two months to develop a solution for consideration by
the Governor and the Legislature that most effectively addresses wildfire liability
consistent with the principles that the strike force has outlined.

Each of the three concepts requires statutory changes to clarify the prudent manager
standard and the requisite burden of proof related to when an IOU is permitted to
recover costs and expenses of wildfires from its customers. To achieve a result that meets
the principles outlined in this Report, utilities will have to make significant contributions to
the benefit of ratepayers.

Concepts 1 and 3 rely on voluntary contributions from utility investors to different extents.
The larger the contribution required, the more clarity utility investors will demand in the
regulatory standard for cost recovery from ratepayers.

Concept 1: Liquidity-Only Fund

The liquidity-only fund involves a modest modification to the current SB 901 framework to
address the delay between when a utility pays wildfire claims and when the CPUC
makes ifs rate recovery determination. This concept would create a fund to provide
bridge financing for utilities to pay wildfire liability claims pending the CPUC's decision on
cost recovery under a modified standard. The liquidity-only fund does not reduce the
burden on utility customers or re-distribute the costs of wildfires among stakeholders. As
such, it does not address certain principles set forth above. In combination with changes
to the CPUC cost recovery process, a liquidity-only fund could stabilize the credit ratings
of utilities.

The liquidity-only fund could be capitalized by utility investors and ratepayers, potentially
through a continuation and securitization of the Department of Water Resources (DWR)
charge implemented during the power crisis in 2001 and expected to be fully repaid
before the end of 2020. All or a portion of that securitization charge could be extended
and dedicated to the ligquidity-only fund.

The fund would then be available to provide funds for utilities to pay claims after a
determination of cause and before a determination of cost recovery. When the CPUC
makes a cost recovery determination, the fund then works as follows:

35

Page 44 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

e If the CPUC determines that the utility met the cost recovery standard and therefore
can recover the costs in rates, then the utility would charge the ratepayers and
reimburse the fund for the amounts drawn.

e |f the CPUC determines that the utility did not meet the cost recovery standard and
therefore cannot recover costs in rates, then the utility would be required to repay
the amounts drawn from the fund such that ratepayers would not bear the cost of
such amounts.

This concept does not shield utility customers from uncapped liability for wildfire
damages. In fact, if cost recovery changes increase the certainty that utilities can
recover damages from their customers, ratepayers will pay more.

Further Research.

Several questions and policy considerations must be addressed to evaluate the liquidity-
only fund and the impact it would have on reducing and socializing costs, and its
ultimate impact on consumers:

e Can the fund provide sufficient liquidity to pay claims in a timely manner while
allowing the CPUC to evaluate wildfirese

e Can this concept, in combination with necessary changes in the CPUC rate recovery
process, provide enough certainty to the capital markets to stabilize ratings and the
perception of a utility’s credit quality?

e How durable can the liquidity fund be while the utilities address their safety
deficiencies?

¢ How much can we expect from this simplified solution if we don’'t address the factors
that turn massive wildfires info massive damage claims?

¢ What does this option mean for rates and affordability ¢

e  What shareholder contribution, if any, would be required to capitalize the fund?

Concept 2: Changing Strict Liability to a Fault-Based Standard

A second concept is to change California’s strict liability standard to one based on fault.
Applying a fault-based standard—utilities pay for damage if caused by their
misconduct—would balance the need for public improvements (i.e. an electrical
distribution system) with the private harm to individuals occasioned by those
improvements. This change would impact only claims for property damage, since
California already applies a negligence standard to personal injury, wrongful death, and
other tort claims.

Moving to a fault-based standard would shift the risk of property loss to insurance
companies and uninsured or underinsured property owners in cases where the ufility was
not a bad actor. Where the utility acted negligently, recklessly, or with infentional
misconduct, it would still be responsible for paying damages, including possible punitive
damages.

36

Page 45 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

As with Concepts 1 and 3, a solution that changed to a fault-based liability standard
would be accompanied with modifications to clarify the prudent manager standard
and the requisite burden of proof related to when an IOU is permitted to recover costs
and expenses of wildfires from its consumers.

Shifting more of the direct financial burden of wildfires to insurance companies may also
affect the cost and availability of property insurance in the WUIL. Whether a reform of
inverse condemnation would affect the cost and availability of insurance is unclear. If
such an impact occurred, a variety of policy responses might be considered, including
creating a catastrophic pooled insurance fund or reforms to the FAIR Plan, which
provides last-resort fire insurance when homeowners or dwelling coverage is unavailable
in the voluntary market of admitted insurers.4?> Admitted insurers are obligated to share in
any losses suffered by the FAIR Plan.

Further Research.

Several questions and policy considerations must be addressed to evaluate the impact
moving to a fault-based system would have on reducing and spreading costs, and its
ulfimate impact on consumers:

¢ How much would moving to a fault-based system reduce the settlements that utilities
pay for wildfire claims?

¢  Would availability and affordability of property insurance in the state, particularly in
the WUI be affected? If so, are there policy options to mitigate that impact?

e Would this approach yield certainty in the needed timeline given the potential legal
risks and challenges?

Concept 3: Wildfire Fund

A third concept is to establish a well-capitalized wildfire fund that would create a buffer
to absorb a significant portion of the wildfire liability costs that might otherwise be
passed on to ratepayers under existing law and regulation while providing fime for
mitigation efforts to be advanced. The wildfire fund would also provide the ufilities a
source of immediate funding for the claims asserted against them for catastrophic
wildfire damages and ensures prompt payment of those claims.

This concept could accomplish each of these objectives if utility shareholders were
prepared to make a substantial contribution to the fund’s claims-paying resources and if
insurers were willing to accept a cap on their subrogation claims (their claims for
reimbursement from the utilities of the payments to their insurance policyholders). If the
wildfire fund is noft sufficiently capitalized and/or the other stakeholders are not willing to

49 The Commission on Catastrophic Wildfire Cost and Recovery is tasked with, among other matters, evaluating the
impact of wildfire damage on insurance availability and affordability. The Commission is expected to deliver its report by
July 1.

37

Page 46 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

compromise their claims, then the wildfire fund will be exhausted more quickly and
ratepayers will be responsible for costs thereafter.

The CPUC would retain jurisdiction to impose penalties on ufilities that fail to prudently
manage their wildfire risks, and those penalties would be paid to the fund to enhance its
claims paying resources. Like the liquidity-only fund, an extended DWR charge could be
dedicated to support the claims paying resources of the wildfire fund.

The following are reasonable elements of a wildfire fund that, depending on additional
research, analysis, and development, may warrant consideration in the future.

3. Pooled Capital: The wildfire fund would include pooled capital from all IOUs
including each of SDG&E, SCE and PG&E and be accessible by each of those
utilities to pay catastrophic wildfire claims. Municipally owned utilities may
participate at their option.

4. Only Catastrophic Fires: The fund would be limited to paying claims of utility-caused
catastrophic wildfire liabilities only (as such fires would be defined in legislation
establishing the fund). Smaller utility-caused fires and the first-dollar costs of
catastrophic wildfires would be paid by a utility’s commercial liability insurance
policy and/or self-insurance reserve.

5. Claims Administration Trust. A wildfire fund could use a trust for the administration of
claims. The trust could pay all subrogation claims to insurance companies and
reimburse utilities for the costs of judgments on or settlements of uninsured and
underinsured victims' claims. All insurance companies writing insurance in the state
could be required to agree that subrogation claims arising out of catastrophic
wildfire claims will be asserted against the trust. A potentially valuable feature of the
wildfire fund could be that subrogation claims will receive settlements at a stated
percentage of the validated amount of their claim. Utilities could be responsible for
litigating or settling claims brought by uninsured and underinsured victims. They
could then seek reimbursement from the trust for the settlement amounts or final
judgments. The reimbursement process could provide incentives for the utilities to
settle promptly with victims, while also ensuring that they settle for fair, but not
excessive, amounts.

6. Automatic Access to the Fund. A utility could seek to pay wildfire claims from the
fund upon determination that the fire was a catastrophic utility-caused wildfire
without pre-determination by the CPUC whether or not the utility acted prudently,
reasonably, or without negligence.

7. Penalties to Discourage Behavior by Fund Participants that Violates Regulatory
Requirements or is Imprudent: Regulatory reforms could incorporate penalties that
would create disincentives for negligent or unreasonable behavior by fund
participants. Penalties could be paid into the fund to further extend claims paying
capacity.

38

Page 47 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Further Research.

How large would the fund need to be to be durable over the anticipated period of
time necessary for utilities to make material progress in containing catastrophic
wildfire risk?2

How can we design a fund that provides the proper incentives for utilities to invest in
prevention to reduce wildfire damages and claims and for property owners to
protect themselves by purchasing adequate insurance?

After emerging from bankruptcy and providing for adequate compensation to its
pre-petition wildfire victims, how will PG&E raise the necessary capital to make its
conftribution to the fund@

How much time will it take to form and capitalize a wildfire funde How should liability
for wildfires that may occur in 2019 prior to the fund’s formation be tfreated? Can the
fund be established before PG&E emerges from bankruptcy?2

Capping subrogation claims moves the upper range of risk from the utility to the
insurers, who will pass it on to customers. What would be the long-term impact on the
availability of insurance?

Would the subrogation cap apply to both property claims and casualty claims,
which are different rights under the law?

Should insurers or insureds contribute to fund capitalization?

39

Page 48 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Part 4: A More Effective CPUC with the Tools to
Manage a Changing Utility Market

California’s changing energy market and the need to mitigate and adapt to climate
change require a state utility regulator that is effective in today’s reality.

The CPUC has a long history as a regulator of rates. It manages complex, participatory,
and time-consuming proceedings to set energy rates for the state’s utilities. Its structure
and deliberative processes flow from the California Constitution, which authorizes the
CPUC to fix rates and charges and allows utilities to raise rates or charges if justified.>0 The
CPUC has an imperative to balance the financial health of utilities and the need to keep
rates as low as possible.

The current structure of the CPUC does not align with California’s need for a regulator
that can effectively address wildfire safety and can be nimble in today’s changing
energy market. The CPUC has assumed a greater role in safety regulation, as well as in
protecting consumers. However, its structure has not fundamentally changed. Further, its
other obligations, including regulation of some transportation industries,
telecommunications, and other industries has grown as the demands on the Commission
as the state’s regulator of utilities have increased and become more complicated.

The Commission needs to strengthen its efforts as an evaluator of risk reduction and as a
key line of defense to prevent wildfires caused by utility infrastructure. It must also be
more nimble and provide necessary certainty more quickly than it does today in light of
the changing energy market and heightened fire risk. Implementing a comprehensive
strategy to improve safety, keep costs down and reach California’s clean energy goals
requires a regulator that applies and enforces regulation in a predictable, tfimely, and
fair way.

The Current CPUC Process

The CPUC has three primary roles: quasi-legislative, rate-setting, and adjudicatory
disputes. Under current law and practice, the CPUC uses different processes depending
on the role it is performing. All types of proceedings are record based and governed by
either an Assigned Commissioner or an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ). All involve
extensive consultation and public input.

The CPUC typically addresses policy issues and capital expenditures in separate
proceedings. For example, the issue of wildfire mitigation is being handled in two
separate proceedings in front of the CPUC--one specific to the WMPs and the second as
part of the general rate case (GRC). As wildfires become more frequent and larger, and
as the state’s energy market changes, the CPUC needs a decision-making process that
is responsive to these developments.

% Article XIl Public Utilities, CAL. CONs. [SECTION 1 - SEC. 9].

40

Page 49 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

IOUs file GRCs with the CPUC every three years for prospective costs. Between GRC
proceedings, the IOUs often file for approval for recovery of unexpected costs incurred.
Except for certain minor matters, a highly structured legal process applies to decisions on
these filings. The process insures that the filing party and opposing parties have an ability
to be heard, including by submitting pleadings and testimony. The testimony and filings
are important because the Commission must base its decisions on evidence in the
record. The process provides other parties the ability to present views that are contrary
to those of the IOUs. While it has value, the existing process can be time-consuming.®!

If the Assigned Commissioner is not the presiding officer, the statutory structure of the
CPUC'’s decision-making process often leaves ALJs with more control over the timing of
the process than the Commissioners. That can lead to delays in proceedings even when
the Commissioners wish to prioritize the decision-making.

In its rate-setting mode, the CPUC faces a difficult balancing act. On the one hand, the
CPUC wants the IOUs to make appropriate investments and expenditures so they can
provide safe and reliable service to their customers. On the other hand, an IOU’s only
source of income is its customers. Consumers have an interest in avoiding unnecessary
costs and investments and keeping borrowing costs down. IOUs operate their business
by collecting a return on investment, but the investments and the return are closely
regulated by the CPUC. When the IOUs are financially healthy, utility customers benefit
from lower cost of capital. When utilities are financially unhealthy, the inverse occurs as
evidenced today in the case of PG&E.

In rate-setting and cost recovery cases, the burden falls on the utility to prove that its
requests or its past actions were reasonable or prudent. In some instances, the utility may
face difficulty proving that past actions meet this burden, which can create financial
uncertainty for the utility. To avoid this, utilities may elect not to make expenditures unless
the cost recovery was pre-approved by the CPUC.

The CPUC sometimes is tasked with new responsibilities that fall outside its traditional
function of ensuring that rates are just and reasonable. After the San Bruno and Aliso
Canyon events, safety has become a much more significant issue for the CPUC. The
recent expansion of the Commission’s role into reviewing WMPs under SB 901, as
described above, is a further example of the CPUC's expanded role.

The CPUC's statutory and Constitutional responsibilities go beyond the rate-making
cases. In developing and overseeing clean energy programs and in its role in

51 As an example, SCE filed its most recent GRC on September 1, 2016, and it is still pending today, more than 2 years later.
See In re: San Diego Gas & Electric Co., Test Year 2018 General Rate Case Application of So. Cal. Edison Co A 16-09-001
(Cal. Pu. Util. Comm’n) (Sept. 1, 2016); When SDG&E filed to recover its third-party damage claims in connection with its
2007 wildfires, it took 2 years for the CPUC to issue its decision denying recovery, and it took 6 months for the CPUC to issue
its rehearing order after SDG&E filed its rehearing request. See Application of San Diego Gas & Elec. Co. (U 902 E) for
Authorization to Recover Costs Related to the 2007 Southern California Wildfires Recorded in the Wildfire Expense
Memorandum Account, In re: San Diego Gas & Electric Co., Decision Denying Application, A 17-11-033 (Cal. Pu. Util.
Comm’'n) (Dec. 6, 2017); In re: San Diego Gas & Electric Co., Order Denying Rehearing of Decision 17-11-033 (Cal. Pu. Util.
Comm’'n) (Jul. 13, 2018).

41

Page 50 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

developing and enforcing safety regulations, the CPUC can also be a policy-setting
body and a quasi-judicial body. At times, the ALJ-led process the CPUC utilizes does not
lend itself to public accessibility or speedy development of new policies. This may
contrast with the public’s expectation that the Commissioners be the ultimate decision
makers who should be held accountable for the timing of developing new rules and
programs.

While there is merit in existing CPUC processes, the lack of flexibility and inefficiency
frustrates the ability of the CPUC to effectively regulate ufilities in a way that best meets
the needs of Californians from a safety and financial standpoint. To more effectively
meet the state’s needs in today’'s environment, the CPUC must be reformed. The
recommendations set forth below represent near-term steps that can be taken to
improve CPUC efficiency and effectiveness. Longer-term, the state should evaluate a
more comprehensive overhaul of the CPUC in an effort to better serve the changing
needs of California.

Recommendations

¢ Expand Safety Expertise: Provide resources to the CPUC for meaningful review of
WMPs or alternatively create a wildfire safety division in another agency. The CPUC
must—on a priority basis—develop appropriate processes and expertise to handle
matters involving safety. This should cover the CPUC's responsibilities for setting safety
standards, conducting inspections and audits, and enforcing the standards. A good
starting point would be to look at safety-related programs used by regulators in other
industry sectors that involve high risks to property and human health and safety, such
as the nuclear, aviation, and refinery industries. While the 2016 reforms made a small
step toward an increased focus on safety, more is needed. Building the CPUC's
capabilities related to safety may require organizational changes, budget increases,
and a concerted effort to hire, contract for, or obtain through cooperative efforts
with other agencies, the expertise needed to handle these new responsibilities. If
experts are not available, then the CPUC should consider entering into grants or
conftracts with universities or consulting firms that could conduct research and
develop standards and training programs to create the necessary expertise.

¢ Overhaul Decision-Making Processes. The CPUC should overhaul and reform its
procedures to implement safety related initiatives and requirements more efficiently.
Given the potentially large financial implications of such determinations as related to
wildfire-related costs, it is particularly important that the CPUC put in place a process
that is both timely and fair, while maintaining public input and transparency as
appropriate. To achieve this goal, the strike force recommends that the Legislature
consider directing the CPUC to do the following:

= Streamline procedural designations for simpler cases. Many proceedings that
could be quasi-legislative are currently subject to full rate-setting procedures.

= Increase authority to delegate lower-level decisions to technical staff to free up
time for administrative law judges and commissioners to focus on fraditional rate-
setting matters.

» Eliminate unnecessary steps in proceedings and provide Commissioners with
discretion to shorten timelines.

42

Page 51 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

=  Streamline enforcement procedures and increase enforcement authority,
including delegating more enforcement authority to the Commission’s safety
division staff.

Review of High-Risk Industry Regulatory Models. The Governor's Office of Planning
and Research, in consultation with experts from academia, industry, and other
research institutions, should review models of agencies that regulate high-risk
industries, such as nuclear power and refineries, and summarize best practices that
could be applied to the CPUC. These practices could include structural or
procedural models and necessary expertise.

Industry Best Practices. The CPUC should develop and adopt industry best practices
for utilities as a resource. It should regularly monitor and update those practices to
reflect learning, changing technology, and the latest assessment of climate change.

43

Page 52 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Part 5: Holding PG&E Accountable and Building a
Utility that Prioritizes Safety

On January 29, PG&E filed voluntary chapter 11 petitions in the United States Bankruptcy
Court for the Northern District of California--PG&E’s second bankruptcy filing in the last
18 years.>2 PG&E attributed its chapter 11 filing to claims resulting from the 2018 wildfires,
including the Camp Fire which PG&E has since stated was likely ignited by its
equipment.’3 PG&E justified the filing, in part, by citing the need to provide fair
compensation for fire victims. Yet consistent with its historic culture, PG&E failed to honor
scheduled seftlement payments to victims of the Butte Fire in the days leading up to its
bankruptcy. PG&E's wilingness to use the bankruptcy process to the advantage of its
investors, and at the expense of Californians, cannot be repeated.

PG&E’s decision to voluntarily seek the protection of a chapter 11 bankruptcy court
punctuates more than two decades of mismanagement, misconduct, and failed efforts
to improve its safety culture. Prior to its filing, PG&E already was on criminal probation,
having been convicted of five felony counts for safety violations in connection with the
San Bruno gas explosion in 2010. That explosion resulted in eight deaths, approximately
58 injuries and 38 homes destroyed.>* PG&E was also convicted of obstruction of justice,
fined over $4.6 million, and sentenced to substantial community service as a result of the
same incident.

In addition to the incidents described above, PG&E has been investigated in
connection with or settled claims related to numerous wildfires and explosions in the last
25 years including:

The Trauner Fire (1994)

The Pendola Fire (1999)

The Sims Fire (2004)

Fred's Fire (2004)

The Rancho Codova gas explosion (2008)

The 2009 San Francisco electrical explosion

The 2014 Carmel gas explosion

The Butte Fire (2015)

Numerous electrical and substation fires (e.g. 1996, 1999, 2003).

52 PG&E previously filed for bankruptcy in 2001 in an effort to undermine the jurisdiction of the CPUC. That multi-year
bankruptcy resulted in substantial rate increases for PG&E customers.

53 PG&E, PG&E Publicly Releases Supplemental Report on Electric Incidents Near the Camp Fire,” the Camp Fire, (Dec. 11,
2018)
https://www.pge.com/en/about/newsroom/newsdetails/index.page?¢title=20181211_pge_publicly_releases_supplementa
|_report_on_electric_incidents_near_the_camp_fire (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

54 See CAL. Pus. UTiumes CoOMM., The San Bruno Catasfrophe and Its Aftermath, (May 2012),
https://www.in.gov/iurc/files/Zeller_-_San_Bruno_Catastrophe_Aftermath.pdf (last visited Apr. 10, 2019).

44

Page 53 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Despite repeated assurances from management that the company would change,
PG&E has failed to implement the fundamental management and cultural reforms to
prioritize safety and reliable service.

Californians deserve better, and we will demand better. The state simply will not accept
a situation where 40 percent of Californians are served by a company that cannot be
trusted to provide safe and affordable power. PG&E must be radically restructured and
transformed into a responsible and accountable utility.

PG&E's bankruptcy proceedings will have direct and profound impacts on the people
of California. The state must participate in the proceedings to protect its interests,
including those of wildfire victims who have claims against the company that must be
resolved fairly and equitably, PG&E employees who are vital to maintain energy delivery
and protect the safety of communities, and the company’s customers who deserve
clean, safe, reliable, and affordable energy. We expect and demand that PG&E will, as
it is obligated to do, comply with state law, including CPUC safety directives and
renewable energy mandates.

Recommendations

PG&E's stakeholders have the primary responsibility for filing a plan of reorganization or
otherwise formulating an exit from chapter 11. For a plan of reorganization to be
confirmed in the bankruptcy proceedings, it must meet the criteria set forth in the
Bankruptcy Code, including that the plan be feasible and that PG&E be in compliance
with law. To meet those standards, PG&E will have to demonstrate that it has sufficient
funds available to make fund distributions provided under the plan and comply with its
WMP and demonstrate that is in compliance with state and federal laws, rules and
regulations, including laws and regulations related to clean energy. Given the
importance of PG&E to California, the state must work to assure that any resolution of
that proceeding achieves the near, medium and long-term goals of the state and its
people over opportunistic investors.

The strike force recommends that the state actively monitor and evaluate the PG&E
bankruptcy proceeding to assure that the state’s interests are being protected. Where
appropriate and necessary, the state should participate in the bankruptcy proceedings
and be heard on particular issues of interest to California. The strike force specifically
recommends the following:

e Evaluate Any Proposals to Satisfy 2017-2018 Wildfire Claims. PG&E must satisfy the
claims against it from the 2017-2018 wildfires. To that end, the state should evaluate
the structure and amount of any trust or other mechanism to satisfy those claims to
assure victims are fully and fairly freated. In addition, the state must evaluate any
plan of reorganization to assess whether provisions of that plan could disadvantage
existing and future wildfire victims.

e Assure that PG&E Treats Its Employees Fairly. PG&E's employees are a crifical part of
the future of the company and must be treated fairly in the bankruptcy proceeding.
The state should monitor the bankruptcy proceedings to assure that employees are
freated fairly.

45

Page 54 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

¢ Require that PG&E’s Investors Contribute to a Solution. Part 3 of this report identified
certain conceptual approaches to the wildfire liability framework applicable to IOUs.
While PG&E would be a beneficiary of any of those constructs, PG&E's investors must
contribute to any solution adopted by the state to address wildfire liabilities in a way
that benefits consumers. Those contributions could take a variety of forms, including
investing in wildfire mitigation and safety or providing funding for other solutions.

e Require PG&E Meet Conditions to Participate in Changes to the Wildfire Liability
Structure for IOUs. PG&E must meet conditions to participate in any approach to
address wildfire liabilities, including fully remaking its corporate and safety culture
and prioritizing governance that recognizes the public trust placed in PG&E.

e Assure That PG&E Meets Its Obligations to Decommission Diablo Canyon. PG&E must
move forward with plans to safely and expeditiously decommission the Diablo
Canyon Nuclear Power Plant. Trust funds and other moneys collected by consumers
must not be diverted from that effort and additional funds must be provided by
PG&E as needed. The state should evaluate the filings in the PG&E bankruptcy
proceeding including the plan to assure that such filings require PG&E to meet its
obligations with regard to Diablo Canyon.

e Evaluate the Impact of PG&E Bankruptcy on Clean Energy Goals. PG&E is party to
numerous power purchase agreements that could be impacted by the chapter 11.
The state should evaluate the impact of any decisions made by PG&E in its chapter
11 with regard to those agreements in light of California’s clean energy goals.

e Assure Plan is Compliant with Law and Feasible. The state should evaluate any plan
of reorganization to assure that the emerging company will be in compliance with
low and that the plan will be feasible.

e Continue Appropriate Regulatory Oversight. Although PG&E is in chapter 11, the
CPUC also has a substantial say in the future of PG&E (as it does for all IOUs). For
example, the CPUC has the power to review PG&E's WMP and its compliance with
that plan, as well as to review PG&E's safety culture assessment. The CPUC also has
the authority fo impose substantial penalties on PG&E for failure to comply with
applicable regulations. Moreover, through the rate-setting function, the CPUC may
provide incentives for PG&E to make prudent expenditures on, and investments in,
safety. This can include actions, such as adjusting the allowed return on equity, that
directly affect investors and management. The CPUC should continue to provide
appropriate regulatory oversight.

While regrettable, the company’s chapter 11 filing offers an opportunity to build a new,
responsible, and accountable utility for Northern California.

Given the long history of safety failures and the critical interests at stake, the state can
take no options off the table, including municipalization of all or a portion of PG&E’s
operations; division of PG&E's service territories into smaller, regional markets; refocusing
PG&E's operations on transmission and distribution; or reorganization of PG&E as a new
company structured to meet its obligations to California..

46

Page 55 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Conclusion

Catastrophic wildfires present tremendous challenges for California. The Governor’s
strike force makes numerous recommendations throughout this report to address those
challenges. The strike force recommended immediate next steps are below.

Next Steps

Catastrophic
Wildfire
Prevention and
Response

Mitigating
Climate
Change through
Clean Energy
Policies

Figure-11

Publicize the Ready, Set, Go app — Wildfire prevention depends on
each of us. To help educate property owners and residents in areas
most at risk, CALFIRE has developed an app called “Ready, Set, Go!”
that breaks down actions needed to be ready for wildfire. CALFIRE
should work with leaders in vulnerable communities on outreach and
provide technical assistance. Every Californian should download the
Ready Set Go App.

Monitor and assess mitigation efforts — CALFIRE is pursuing a number
of aggressive wildfire mitigation efforts, including distributing locall
community grants for mitigation. Metrics will be developed to
measure the effectiveness of these programs and the community
reach for local grant recipients.

Convene Governor's 2019 Emergency Preparedness Summit — The
Governor's Office of Emergency Services will, by June 2019, convene
first responders, government agencies, local governments,
community residents, and technical experts to develop plans for the
state's emergency preparedness. The summit will highlight best
practices of local communities, share resources that have worked,
and develop the networks necessary for ongoing preparedness
improvements.

Prepare for state response to ufilities reducing fire risks — Ufilities are
reportedly considering expanded de-energization of specific areas
during high-risk periods to reduce the risk of wildfires. OES and the
CPUC will lead an effort to assess utility plans fo de-energize and will
work with utilities, local governments, first responders, critical
providers, businesses and residents to manage the potential of de-
energization.

Implement emergency preparedness campaign and continue to
pursue necessary resources for wildfire prevention and response.

Work with the Legislature, Cal ISO, and the CPUC on a legislative and
regulatory agenda to ensure that California simultaneously addresses
the impacts of climate change, including increased wildfires, and the
root causes of climate change. Such work must include review of
emissions from the electricity and transportation sectors. We must
plan for a multi-year reform agenda, working in collaboration with
the Legislature.

47

Page 56 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Fair Allocation
of Catastrophic
Wildfire
Damage

Increasing
Capacity of the
CPUC with the
Tools to
Effectively
Manage a
Changing Utility
Market

Holding PG&E
Accountable by
Building a Utility
that Prioritizes
Safety

Convene academics, private foundations, stakeholders, and
government to assist in the development of a multi-year agenda to
ensure that California simultaneously addresses the impacts of
climate change.

Significant policy development work, legal analysis, and financial
simulations have all informed the liability concepts included in the
report. However, additional analysis is needed. Request the SB 901
commission fo review and analyze maijor liability concepts presented
in report and solicit public comment regarding the different options.

Direct the Governor's Strike Force to continue its work developing
these options for consideration by the Governor and the Legislature
by no later than this summer.

Request the Department of Insurance to monitor, study, and issue
recommendations to maintain an accessible and affordable
insurance market throughout the state.

Focus on building internal CPUC capacity to evaluate and help
strengthen the IOU’s wildfire mitigation plans immediately.

Direct the CPUC to immediately assess regulatory and legislative
changes to make their proceedings more expeditious. Identify and
draft regulations and legislation needed to expedite their
administrative proceedings. Such proposals should be reviewed with
stakeholders and pursued as soon as possible.

Push for Safety Changes. The CPUC should continue to provide
appropriate regulatory oversight on utility safety. The CPUC has the
power to review PG&E's wildfire mitigation plan and its compliance
with that plan, as well as to review PG&E's safety culture assessment.
The CPUC also has the authority fo impose substantial penalties on
PG&:E for failure to comply with applicable regulations. These tools
should be actively used to help create the safest utility possible.

Actively Monitor and Appear in the Bankruptcy Proceedings. The
state will actively monitor the PG&E bankruptcy proceedings to
assure that California’s interests are being protected. Where
appropriate and necessary, the state will participate in the
bankruptcy proceedings and be heard on particular issues of interest
to California, including fair freatment of fire victims and employees,
issues relating to safety, and factors affecting the state's progress to
achieve climate commitments.

Require PG&E's investors fo contribute to any solution adopted by the
state to address wildfire victim claims. Those contributions could take
a variety of forms including investing in wildfire mitigation and safety
or providing funding for the wildfire fund.

48

Page 57 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Wildfires have always plagued California. Climate change has made--and will continue
to make--the fires hotter, bigger, more frequent, and more destructive. The costs of
these fires is unbearable. The loss of human life, property, economic opportunities,
community life, exacerbated by the costs to rebuild communities — cannot be sustained.

Yet, we know we cannot avoid all fire risks. This level of disaster touches every
Californian. All Californians must share in the responsibility to mitigate wildfires. Paying for
the costs of wildfires is also a problem that requires shared responsibility and shared
sacrifice. All stakeholders must come together to address the cumulative liability of
uncontrolled fires. The status quo is not an option. Doing nothing is unacceptable.

49

Page 58 of 98



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Annex A

Comparison of Wildfire Mitigation Plans

Estimated 2019 Costs ($ in millions)

PG&E SCE SDG&E
O&M: $849 O&M: $507 O&M: $24
Capital: $1,623 Capital: $1,027 Capital: $178
Total: $2,472 Total: $1,535 Total: $202
Plan Priorities
PG&E SCE SDG&E

Vegetation Management
& Enhanced Inspections

Ignition Reduction in High-
Risk Areas

Ignition Reduction in High-
Risk Areas

¢ Wildfire Response Fire Suppression Fire Suppression
e System Hardening System Hardening Wildfire safety and
¢ Situational Monitoring Communication recovery
e Operational Practices
(e.g., de-energization)
e Tech Research /
Development
High-Risk Exposure (% of Service Territory)
PG&E SCE SDG&E
52% 35% 54%:55

System Hardening (Est. 2019 % of Circuit Miles Hardened in High-Risk Threat District)

PG&E SCE SDG&E
0.6% 0.5% N/A5¢
Vegetation Management (Est. 2019 removals / % of total trees)
PG&E SCE SDG&E
375,000 frees 7,500 trees 9,000 trees
(0.375%) (0.500%) (1.935%)

55 Percentage of SDG&E's overhead circuit miles that reside in High Fire Threat Districts. Percentage of Service Territory figures
were not available.

5¢ SDG&E uses an execution metric which expects that 90-100 percent of its system will be hardened by the end of 2019.
This includes system miles hardened and percentage of poles replaced

50

Page 59 of 98



PG&E

2019 Install: 400
(1.10 per 100 mi2)

Cumulative: 600
(1.65 per 100 mi2)

PG&E

2019 Install: 71
(0.20 per 100 mi?)

Cumulative: 79
(0.22 per 100 mi2)

De-Energization

PG&E

PG&E has implemented
the Wildlife Reclosing
Disable program fo
manage circuit breakers if
necessary

PG&E targets an increase
in its Public Safety Power
Shutoff program from
~7,000 mi of lines to
~25,000 mi of lines in 2019

Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Weather Stations in High-Risk Threat District

SCE

2019 Install: 315
(1.70 per 100 mi2)

Cumulative7: 440
(2.38 per 100 mi2)

Cameras in High-Risk Threat District

SCE

2019 Install: 62
(0.34 per 100 mi2)

Cumulativess: 160
(0.87 per 100 mi2)

SCE

SCE has broadly outlined
its plans to install
additional remote
automatic reclosers

SCE will conduct Public
Safety Power Shutoffs
based on the judgement
of the incident
management team and
has a contingency
operating plan in place

57 Weather stations reflect 2018 + 2019E installations.
58 Cameras reflect 2018-2020E installations.

51

Page 60 of 98

SDG&E
N/A

Cumulative: 175
(6.21 per 100 mi2)

SDG&E

N/A

Cumulative: 107
(3.79 per 100 mi2)

SDG&E

SDG&E has deployed
overhead distribution
reclosers focusing on High-
Risk Threat Districts

To determine whether to
employ a Power Shutoff,
SDG&E considers multiple
variables such as weather
conditions, vegetation,
field observations, flying
delbris, expected duration
of conditfions and location
of existing fires/wildfire
activity



Wildfires and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future

Annex B

SB 901 Factors

1.

The nature and severity of the conduct of the electric grid and its officers,
employees, contractors, and other entities with which the electric grid forms a
contractual relationship, including systemic corporate defects.

Whether the electric grid disregarded indicators of wildfire risk.

Whether the electric grid failed to design its assets in a reasonable manner.
Whether the electric grid failed to operate its assets in a reasonable manner.
Whether the electric grid failed to maintain its assets in a reasonable manner.

Whether the electric grid's practices to monitor, predict, and anficipate wildfires, and
to operate its facilities in a reasonable manner based on information gained from its
monitoring and predicting of wildfires, were reasonable.

The extent to which the costs and expenses were in part caused by circumstances
beyond the electric grid's conftrol.

Whether extreme climate conditions at the location of the wildfire's ignition, including
humidity, temperature, or winds occurring during the wildfire, contributed to the fire's
ignition or exacerbated the extent of the damages. The electric grid shall provide
the CPUC with specific evidence and data demonstrating the impact of climate
conditions on the severity of the wildfire.

The electric grid's compliance with regulations, laws, CPUC orders, and its wildfire
mitigation plans prepared pursuant to Section 8386 of the PUC, including its history of
compliance.

10. Official findings of state, local, or federal government offices summarizing statutory,

regulatory, or ordinance violations by any actor that contributed to the extent of the
damages.

11. Whether the costs and expenses were caused by a single violation or multiple

violations of relevant rules.

12. Other factors the CPUC finds necessary to evaluate the reasonableness of the costs

and expenses, including factors traditionally relied upon by the CPUC in its decisions.

52

Page 61 of 98



Page 62 of 98



Wildfire Resiliency
Attachment Two

CSAC Press Release: CSAC Ready to Engage With Governor In Wildfire
Plan to Protect Counties and Residents

Page 63 of 98



California State Association of Counties
1100 K Street, Suite 101
Sacramento, CA 95814

916.327.7500 Facsimile 916.441-5507

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE April 12, 2019

Contact: Sara Floor, Communications Manager
916-327-7500, ext. 516; email: sfloor@counties.org

CSAC READY TO ENGAGE WITH GOVERNORIN
WILDFIRE PLAN TO PROTECT COUNTIES AND
RESIDENTS

SACRAMENTO — CSAC joined a broad coalition of fire victims, local governments and insurers to
respond to Governor Gavin Newsom'’s plan for addressing wildfires in California. View that release
here.

“The system is not perfect, and we agree with Governor Newsom that we all need to work together on
disaster planning, preparation and response. CSAC and our member counties have taken an early lead
in these efforts to keep communities safe at the local level with focused discussions on planning and
preparedness, support for increased defensible space around homes, improved emergency alert
systems and more,” said CSAC Executive Director Graham Knaus. “We look forward to continuing this
critical work and partnering with the administration to help our communities rebuild and help provide
direct assistance to victims.”

California counties are committed to the Governor’s principles of reducing risk, protecting victims,
ensuring for safe and affordable power and holding utilities accountable. CSAC also agrees with
Governor Newsom that inverse condemnation is a constitutionally protected liability standard.
Furthermore, inverse condemnation helps to decrease the risk of catastrophic wildfires by
incentivizing safety while also protecting victims.

CSAC has already been involved in discussions with Governor Newsom'’s office to convene the 2019
Emergency Preparedness Summit in June. The Summit will allow disaster-impacted counties the
chance to highlight and share the best practices and resources that have worked in rebuilding and
increasing resiliency. CSAC stands at the ready to work with this Administration and partners to
further develop and strengthen the networks needed for ongoing preparedness improvements.

CSAC remains committed to creating a safe, fair and stable system that protects victims and
ratepayers, meets electricity needs, and protects against future tragedies. Looking forward to the
work ahead, CSAC thanks the Governor for his commitment to this critical issue and to building a
stronger and more resilient California.

HH##
Page 64 of 98



Wildfire Resiliency
Attachment Three

Wildfire Coalition Press Release: Fire Victims, Local Governments, and
Insurers Respond to Governor’s Wildfire Strategy

Page 65 of 98



A COALITION OF FIRE VICTIMS HURT BY PG&E OF CALIFORNIA COUNTIES

o CITIES

e

RCRC .°Pirc ¢ LTTORAETS

CALIFORRIL

Up from the Ashes \\ LEAGUE’ URBAN

CONSUNER

’ American Property Casualty
iati
¥ Insurance {\Cs.socmatlo'n:

NSURING AMERICA

April 12, 2019

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
Contact: David Liebler, dliebler@counties.org, 916-327-7500, ext. 530

Fire Victims, Local Governments and Insurers Respond to Governor’s Wildfire
Strategy

As California continues to recover from — and prepare for — yet another potentially catastrophic
wildfire season, we would like to thank Governor Newsom for his early leadership on this
important issue, and for confronting head-on the challenges of catastrophic wildfires. We
appreciate this Administration’s emphasis on safety as it releases a comprehensive new policy
planning and discussion framework for greater statewide wildfire resiliency.

This five-point plan includes a number of areas where we stand ready to work together to tackle
the challenges associated with wildfire. We are especially pleased to see the plan include
reference to a catastrophic wildfire fund as a mechanism to provide compensation for fire
victims and greater stability for utilities. While there are many details to be discussed, we
support exploring the concept further and we look forward to working together to explore how it
might take form to provide greater certainty of process for utilities and protection for victims.

We are also committed to the Governor’s principles of reducing risk, protecting victims, ensuring
for safe & affordable power and holding utilities accountable. Our organizations strongly believe
that the current constitutionally protected liability standard under inverse condemnation is one of
the very best tools to decrease the risk of catastrophic wildfires. It incentivizes safety and
facilitates actions that reduce wildfire risk as we adapt to our changing environment and become
more resilient.

Our organizations have worked together as a coalition over the last year to support measures
that address the multitude of issues surrounding catastrophic wildfire, including utility-caused
wildfires and liability. Our goal has always been to create a safe, fair and stable system that
protects victims and ratepayers, meets electricity needs, and protects against future tragedies.
We believe that out of tragedy comes opportunity to work together to build a stronger and more
resilient California. We look forward to the work ahead, and thank the Governor for his
commitment to this critical issue.

California State Association of Counties, Rural County Representatives of California, Urban Counties of California,

League of California Cities, Up from the Ashes, Consumer Attorneys of California, Personal Insurance Federation of
California, American Property Casualty Insurance Association

Page 66 of 98


mailto:dliebler@counties.org

Wildfire Resiliency
Attachment Four
CSAC Letter to CPUC: Public Safety Power Shutoff Procedure Regulations

Page 67 of 98



BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Order Instituting Rulemaking to Examine Electric
Utility De-Energization of Power Lines in Dangerous Rulemaking 18-12-005

Conditions. (Filed December 13, 2018)

OPENING COMMENTS OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF
COUNTIES ON ASSIGNED COMMISSIONER’S SCOPING MEMO AND RULING
(PHASE 1)

March 25, 2019 MEGAN M. MYERS
Attorney for the California State
Association of Counties
Law Offices of Megan M. Myers
110 Oxford Street
San Francisco, CA 94134
Telephone: (415) 994-1616
Facsimile: (415) 387-4708
E-mail: meganmmyers@yahoo.com

Page 68 of 98


mailto:meganmmyers@yahoo.com
mailto:meganmmyers@yahoo.com

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Order Instituting Rulemaking to Examine Electric
Utility De-Energization of Power Lines in Dangerous Rulemaking 18-12-005

Conditions. (Filed December 13, 2018)

OPENING COMMENTS OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF
COUNTIES ON ASSIGNED COMMISSIONER’S SCOPING MEMO AND RULING
(PHASE 1)

The California State Association of Counties (CSAC) respectfully submits these Opening
Comments on Assigned Commissioner’s Scoping Memo and Ruling (Phase 1), issued in this
Rulemaking (R.) 18-12-005 (De-Energization) on March 8, 2019 (Phase 1 Scoping Memo).
CSAC was granted party status in this proceeding on March 18, 2019. These Opening
Comments are timely filed and served pursuant to the Commission’s Rules of Practice and

Procedure and the Phase 1 Scoping Memo.

I.
BACKGROUND ON CSAC

CSAC is a nonprofit mutual benefit corporation under the California Nonprofit Mutual
Benefit Corporation Law. CSAC is a lobbying, advocacy and service organization which
represents all 58 counties of the State of California. CSAC is focused on advancing the vital
public interest in effective, efficient and responsive local government. CSAC, under the name of
the County Boards of Supervisors Association of California began meeting in 1895 and was later
renamed CSAC in 1991 and is based in Sacramento, California. CSAC’s long-term objective is
to significantly improve the fiscal health of all California counties so they can adequately meet

the demand for vital public programs and services.

Page 69 of 98



II.
CSAC’S RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS POSED IN THE PHASE 1 SCOPING MEMO

The Scoping Memo requests responses from parties to several questions regarding the
issues within Phase 1 of this proceeding. In addition, the Phase 1 Staff Proposal, attached as
Appendix A to the Scoping Memo (Phase 1 Staff Proposal) sets forth the Safety and
Enforcement Division’s (SED’s) recommendations in response to these questions. Below,
CSAC provides its responses to the questions and the positions taken in the Phase 1 Staff
Proposal.

1. Updates to Resolution ESRB-8;

a. What, if any, updates or modifications should be made to Resolution ESRB-8 to
ensure that, should de-energization become necessary during the 2019 wildfire
season, de-energization is undertaken as efficiently and safely as possible?

CSAC does not have a response to this question at this time, but reserves the right to

respond in Reply Comments.

2. Notification and communication to the public (including vulnerable populations), local
governments, critical facilities, and emergency/first responders;

a. What are the best ways to notify the aforementioned parties of a planned de-
energization event and when power will be restored in the event of de-
energization?

The Phase 1 Staff Proposal states that the investor-owned utilities (IOUs) “will be
responsible for contacting local public safety officials in impacted jurisdictions prior to a de-
energization event and must utilize all available means to communicate a de-energization
event.”! The Phase 1 Staff Proposal requires that these contacts, at a minimum, including local

and County public safety notification points and primary 24-hour contact points, secondary

contacts and tertiary contacts.” The proposal further requires the IOUs to update these lists

! Phase 1 Staff Proposal, at p. 1.
*ld.

Page 70 of 98



annually and all notifications must be sent concurrently to the California Government’s Office of
Emergency Services, the California Public Utilities Commission, and CALFIRE.?

CSAC supports using the Phase 1 Staff Proposal’s position as a starting point on this
issue and that it should be expanded in several ways. First, the contact list must include the
County’s Office of Emergency Services (OES), Emergency Management Agency (EMA),
Department of Public Health, Fire Service and Law Enforcement agencies, at a minimum. In
large dense, urban areas there may be 50-70 or more of these types of agencies and each agency
should receive its own notification. In addition, CSAC recommends that the IOU contact the
County OES and its cooperators in such a way that allows for a coordinated response from all
necessary County cooperators. Notifications should also go to the Operational Areas affected
and the California OES Warning Center simultaneously and neighboring Operational Areas can
be alerted by the Warning Center. CSAC supports the contentions made by the County of
Mendocino, the County of Napa and the County of Sonoma (the Counties) in their Comments on
this Order Instituting Rulemaking (OIR) that “[1]ocal governments will generally have more
accurate information about their residents’ needs, and will have more experience providing
emergency notifications...”

Second, CSAC agrees with the actions described in the Comments of the County of San
Diego OES on this OIR wherein it set forth 10 actions that “should be required of utilities in de-
energization events so that local governments are properly informed and ready to perform the
necessary emergency management functions.” These actions include, but are not limited to
requirements that county authorities be the primary and first point of notification about a

pending/upcoming de-energization, advance notice be given to county authorities, and advance

ld.
4 Opening Comments of the Counties on OIR, at p. 6.
3> Opening Comments of County of San Diego OES on OIR, at p. 3.

3

Page 71 of 98



notice of de-energization be given to critical infrastructure, such as schools, water treatment
facilities, hospitals, and dispatch centers.®

i. How far in advance (and in what order of priority) should the
aforementioned parties be notified of an upcoming de-energization event?

CSAC recommends that notification of an anticipated de-energization event be given as
early as possible with priority notification going to the County OES and critical infrastructure
partners. Ideally, IOUs should provide notice of de-energization events at the beginning of the
I0U’s de-energization planning cycle. Furthermore, early communication between the IOU and
local governments and first responders, and effective protocols for how to coordinate during a
PSPS event, will minimize disruptions to these critical functions when power lines need to be de-
energized.

In addition, the Commission should consider the concept that notification should occur in
steps or phases. For example, notice of a Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) would occur
seven days before the event. Thereafter, notification of the threat of a PSPS would occur 72
hours before the event, again at 48 hours if the threat continues. At 24 hours, a warning should
be issued that the threat of a PSPS is likely or imminent. A PSPS warning would occur 12 hours
before the event and a PSPS activation would occur during the event. Weather patterns normally
become indicative of high wind/low humidity conditions about seven days out and as the critical
period approaches, the forecast becomes more accurate as to timing and intensity at about the 48
to 72-hour period. Finally, about 12 hours before the PSPS the forecast is highly accurate. Ata
minimum, two hours prior to the PSPS, a warning should be issued to allow local agencies to
prepare and stage resources, active their Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and notify the

public with warnings about their safety.

Page 72 of 98



There should be a series of progressively more accurate and detailed notifications
occurring across a timeline to the critical event. Furthermore, rural residents and farms are
dependent on IOUs for water pumps and must be informed in as much time as possible in
advance so that they can build gravity backup water storage or generators for power. This is a
major concern for rural residents who may otherwise be able to protect their property if they had
power to their wells.

ii. What information should be conveyed about an upcoming de-
energization event?

All available information related to a de-energization event should be conveyed so local
Emergency Managers can formulate the proper response. This information should include, but is
not limited to, the following: (1) the reason for proposed outage or event triggering the de-
energization, (2) trigger points for outage, (3) area of proposed outage, (4) anticipated length of
outage, (5) number of residents affected (6) estimated de-energizing start date and time, (7)
restoration date and time and (8) estimated time to re-energize the off-line grid. There should
also be daily morning and evening briefings or status updates. Effective communication about
the duration of a de-energization event is critical because as noted by the Counties in their
Comments on the OIR “[t]he length of a PSPS event will almost always exceed the battery
backup capabilities of cell towers and generators, which increases public safety risks for both
residents and first responders.”’

Furthermore, the notification list should include additional partners such as EMAs,
Medical Alert Centers (EMS Networks), transportation agencies, non-public safety government
leaders and elected officials. There should be an opportunity for government agencies that are

impacted by a PSPS to have a method to enroll in the IOU’s PSPS outage notification system. It

7 Opening Comments of the Counties on OIR, at pp. 6-7.
5

Page 73 of 98



is extremely helpful if the IOU provides the government partners a set of Outage Maps that
corresponds to the services areas which are expected to be deenergized. This allows the agency
to pre-plan for critical infrastructure which may be impacted.

As for Medical Baseline customers, a challenge for EMAs is resolving overlapping
registries; an individual medically dependent on power can exist on several local, state and
federal lists, and on the IOU’s too. Deconflicting these lists in real-time during an emergency is
labor intensive.

Lastly, the information provided by the IOUs should include safety messages. For
example, these would include messages such as not to use elevators; power down machines that
could be harmful if in use during a power shutdown; do not use a barbeque indoors to cook or
heat; charge your cell phone, wheel chair, or other devices that have batteries; and backup data
files to backup systems.

iili. Who should be responsible for notifying affected customers/populations?
Should the utilities be solely responsible, or should other parties such as
local governments have a responsibility in communicating these events?

CSAC supports the Phase 1 Staff Proposal which states that the “IOUs should retain the
responsibility for notifying impacted jurisdictions of de-energization events ...”* Customer
notification is a direct responsibility of the IOU. In addition, CSAC recommends that the IOUs
provide message language to the local OES so it can use its Emergency Notification System and
all Social Media presence to augment the IOU’s message. Messaging should also be coordinated

and translations required as per State guidance. Lastly, a Memorandum of Understanding

(MOU) should be developed if local governments are to effectively assist the IOUs.

8 Phase 1 Staff Proposal, at p. 3.

Page 74 of 98



iv. What systems should be used for notification of customers (for example,
the Standardized Emergency Management System framework, reverse 9-
1-1, etc.)?

CSAC asserts that alerts and warnings must be disseminated through as many formats
and channels as possible and should be communicated using available technologies and meeting
the minimum standards of the State Alert and Warning Guidance. 10Us should utilize all
available formats to notify customers. This includes partnering with the local OES as they have
more robust notification systems to reach the local populace, such as Reverse 9-1-1-, Wireless
Emergency Alerts (WEA), Emergency Alert System (EAS), Nixle, Nextdoor, and social media.
Lastly, these notifications should use common nomenclature.

People receive their information today in a variety of formats, there is no single tool that
reaches everyone. Often the same event that triggered the PSPS also disrupts the power supply
which then impacts cellular systems, internet providers, and land-lines. There is a tendency to
consider PSPS as a local event which impacts only a small portion of the Operational Area at a
time, but the consequences often travel far beyond the boundaries of the event. As such, PSPS
activations should utilize broadcast media too.

b. How should ‘vulnerable populations’ be defined and identified?

CSAC supports the Phase 1 Staff Proposal’s definition of “vulnerable populations” which
identifies those individuals who are or have the following: (1) physical, developmental or
intellectual disabilities; (2) chronic conditions or injuries; (3) limited English proficiency; (4)
elderly; (5) children; (6) low income, homeless and/or transportation disadvantaged; and (7)
pregnant women.’ Identification should be handled by the local Public Health Departments and

by the IOU’s programs for the medically fragile.

° Phase 1 Staff Proposal, at pp. 3-4.

Page 75 of 98



CSAC asserts that the list identified in the Phase 1 Staff Proposal is a fairly inclusive list,
but the reality is that any sub-set of the population that as a result of their personal
circumstances, suffers a disproportionate amount of impact from a PSPS event, is a “vulnerable
population.” Furthermore, the IOUs should have a plan for de-energizations that impact
vulnerable populations which should include assistance from local jurisdictions, but should be
the utilities’ plan to implement. For vulnerable populations, the work of ensuring proper notice
has to begin long before a PSPS event occurs. The IOU must have an accurate list of vulnerable
customers.

i. Is alist of Medical Baseline customers sufficient, and if not, how should
the utilities identify vulnerable populations?

CSAC believes that the list of Medical Baseline customers is not sufficient and must
include all vulnerable populations as noted in the Phase 1 Staff Proposal for several reasons.
Medical Baseline does not identify individuals who have recently become vulnerable or have
recently moved to the area. Medical Baseline is also problematic because that program is
significantly under-enrolled. Self-registration acts as a barrier to people who, as noted by the
Counties, “have limited English language capabilities, cognitive issues or severe physical
impairments, sensory disabilities, medication or other substance impairment, and psychosocial
instability.”!!

The IOUs need a much stronger and robust response to critical care customers. PSPS
outages can occur for much longer periods than traditional outage scenarios, and this can exceed
the standby power capabilities of Medical Baseline customers. More pre-planning and standby

power solutions are necessary to protect this population. Furthermore, Southern California

10 Phase 1 Staff Proposal, at p. 4.
"' Opening Comments of the Counties on OIR, at p. 7.

8

Page 76 of 98



Edison (SCE) also uses two terms “Medical Baseline” and “Critical Care” and further definition
of these two terms is required.

Lastly, IOUs should identify vulnerable populations through contacting the County
Public Health agencies, County Departments of Human Assistance, Child Family and Adult
Services and Health Services.

c¢. How should critical facilities be defined and identified?

In general, CSAC supports the Phase 1 Staff Proposal which identifies critical facilities
as: (1) police stations, (2) fire stations, (3) EOCs, (4) medical facilities, (5) schools and day care
centers, (6) public and private utility facilities vital to maintaining or restoring normal services,
(7) drinking water and wastewater treatment plants and (8) communication carrier
infrastructure.'> However, CSAC recommends that the Commission also consider the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) definition of critical facilities which is slightly
broader. Most jurisdictions know which of their facilities are critical to maintain government
function which is why outage maps are important. With these maps, local governments can
identify critical infrastructure impacts and plan for standby power and alternative service
delivery models.

Lastly, CSAC recommends that the Commission consider adding to its definition of
medical facilities to include dialysis centers, surgical centers, hospitals, and lock down facilities.
The Commission should also include pump stations to the definition of drinking water and
wastewater treatment plants. Finally, the Commission should add fueling facilities and
hazardous material operating facilities such as refineries and chemical production facilities to its

list of critical facilities.

12 Phase 1 Staff Proposal, at p. 4.

Page 77 of 98



d. How should first responders/emergency responders be defined and identified?
CSAC supports the Phase 1 Staff Proposal’s definition and identification of first
responders/emergency responders except that EMAs and public works should be included in the

definition of emergency response providers.

i. Should water utilities and communication companies be defined as first
responders?

CSAC’s position is that public utilities and communication companies while not defined
as first responders are relied upon by first responders to provide critical fire flow water, critical
cell and internet services so first response agencies can notify the public with emergency
information and the public can contact first responders with 911 emergency information. Failure
of a waste water system because of loss of power could create an environmental hazard if they
have a loss of power to lift stations and treatment facilities.

3. What structures and practices should be in place to maximize coordination between
utilities and first responders/local governments;

CSAC generally supports the Phase 1 Staff Proposal position on this matter but
emphasizes the fact that there should be crystal clear and open lines of communications between
the IOUs and local OES and critical infrastructure providers. Furthermore, REST and Shapefiles
should be defined in more generic terms because these Geographic Information System (GIS)
terms are not universally recognized or understood.

The best practice is to ensure close coordination during actual events which begins with
close professional relationships between government agencies and IOUs. These relationships are
developed prior to PSPS events. Formats to do this include conducting mutual operational
briefings, participating in joint training sessions, conducting scenario-based exercises, joint

facility tours and exchanging Liaison Officers between EOCs.

10

Page 78 of 98



CSAC further recommends that model runs using past critical weather days should be
conducted to identify for local government what they are to expect when a shutdown is initiated.
Currently there is no way to determine whether a shutdown will affect 100 customers or 20,000
customers on any given circuit. This emphasizes the need for accurate maps of shutdown areas
because there is currently too much uncertainty. Formalized protocols that outline the roles and
responsibilities of the IOUs and local government and first responders are necessary to ensure
effective notification and coordination.

a. Should the utilities be required to embed liaison officers (who are empowered to
make decisions on behalf of the utility) in emergency operations centers carried
out under state and local plans consistent with SEM?

CSAC supports the IOUs being required to embed liaison officers. This person must be
able to make decision on behalf of the utility or be able to immediately access someone who can.
Furthermore, this should be done not only at the local level but at the State Regional Emergency
Operations Center (REOC), as well.

4. What information should be provided to the Commission after a de-energization event
to show that de-energization was used as a method of last resort and that it was in
compliance with Commission rules?

CSAC recommends that the IOU provide a comprehensive After-Action Report to the
Commission that clearly shows the timeline of the de-energization event and every action taken
with justifications for the actions taken. This report should also include how the IOUs arrived at

their decision to issue a shutdown and be shared with local Governments.

5. What additional provisions or protocols are necessary if de-energization of transmission
lines become necessary?

CSAC recommends that the following provisions and protocols be adopted if de-

energization of transmission lines become necessary:

11

Page 79 of 98



e They should be formulated to provide for the least impact on critical infrastructure and
transportation infrastructure.
e The scale and scope of the response should reflect the scale and scope of the events.
e All shutdowns should only be initiated if the IOUs are capable of a rapid re-energization
in case a real emergency occurs that will require power to mitigate.
e Hardening and maintenance, not shutting off the power, is the most crucial method of
preventing fires from electrical equipment.
e There should be an effective code of enforcement rather than shutting down power.
e There needs to be clear parameters for an event to trigger de-energization, such as
humidity factors, wind speed, and dry foliage.
Furthermore, immediate power restoration is of critical importance. It is also crucial that
IOUs consider that there is no point in time when power is more important than when a fast-
moving wildfire is devastating a community. For example, if a de-energization event takes place
and people are not able to charge their cell phones and a fire begins, that person would be unable
to access an alert system. IOUs should support de-energized areas with temporary emergency
assistance centers which provide the public with an area to seek climate-controlled facilities
that allow for access to necessities and the ability to keep critical communication devices like
cellular phones charged.

I11.
CONCLUSION

CSAC appreciates the opportunity to provide responses to the questions posed in the
Phase 1 Scoping Memo and supports many of the positions taken by the Commission in the

Phase 1 Staff Proposal. However, as discussed above, many of those recommendations must be

12

Page 80 of 98



expanded upon to ensure that notification and communication de-energization rules implemented

by this Commission accurately and safely protect those affected by de-energization.

Respectfully submitted,

March 25, 2019 /s/ MEGAN M. MYERS
Megan M. Myers
Attorney for CSAC

Law Offices of Megan M. Myers
110 Oxford Street

San Francisco, CA 94134
Telephone: (415) 994-1616
Facsimile: (415) 387-4708
E-mail:meganmmyers@yahoo.com

13

Page 81 of 98


mailto:meganmmyers@yahoo.com
mailto:meganmmyers@yahoo.com

AENR Legislative Priorities Status Update
Attachment Five
AENR 2019 Legislative Priorities Update Memo

Page 82 of 98



(SA(

1100 K Street
Suite 101
Sacramento
California
95814

Telephone
916.327.7500

Facsimile

916.441.5507

California State Association of Counties®

April 15, 2019
To: CSAC Agriculture, Environment & Natural Resources (AENR) Policy Committee
From: Cara Martinson, Senior Legislative Representative & Federal Affairs Manager

Nick Cronenwett, Legislative Analyst

Re: AENR 2019 Legislative Priorities Update

Accessing Resources: Climate & Resiliency Funding. Resources and funding are critical for counties to
successfully implement resiliency efforts. The top priority of the CSAC AENR policy unit in 2019 is to
advocate for increased access to resources to fund a number of priorities in this area, including direct
response and emergency preparedness and communications. The new Administration started strong
with a January budget that reflected many of CSAC’s resiliency budget priorities, and moved quickly to
expedite funding in several areas. CSAC successfully supported the passage of AB 72 and AB 73 earlier
this year, which provided $31.1 million in backfill for property tax, $50 million for emergency
preparedness grants, and funds to upgrade 9-1-1 systems. CSAC is also gathering updated estimates for
lost property taxes for counties damaged in 2018 fires to help provide direct assistance through the
May Revision of the State Budget.

Additionally, CSAC is supporting and engaging in the development of a resiliency bond as proposed by
SB 45 (Allen). We will continue to work with stakeholders to help shape this measure, which could
provide significant funding for a number of our priorities. Finally, staff continues to focus on other
funding opportunities within the state’s cap and trade program for greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
reduction and adaptation work to help prepare counties guard against and prepare for our changing
climate.

Disaster Response & Future Liability. As we move into yet another potentially dangerous wildfire
season, CSAC is working closely with the CAL OES and the Governor’s Office to coordinate and engage
in direct outreach to local governments to assess needs. CSAC will be co-sponsoring a statewide
disaster summit with the Administration in early June to help accomplish these goals. CSAC is also
continuing to work with our coalition on efforts to prevent changes to our current wildfire liability legal
standard under inverse condemnation. We are exploring options for greater certainty for utilities and
protection for victims, many of which are included in the Governor’s recently released report Wildfires
and Climate Change: California’s Energy Future. This will continue to be a priority throughout the next
several months as the Governor has called for action before the Legislature’s summer recess.

Land Use, Resiliency & Emergency Management. The ongoing discussion of wildfire impacts has
prompted continued legislative debate on fire impacts and liability and land use. Consequently, the
Legislature has proposed a number of bills related to these topics. CSAC is engaging in a number of
these conversations and supporting efforts that we believe will enhance local safety and create more
resilient communities. CSAC is working closely with stakeholders and the author on SB 182 (Jackson), a
measure that would impose certain fire hazard planning responsibilities on local governments and
require cities and counties to make specified findings prior to permitting development in the very high
fire areas. We are working with a number of stakeholders to refine language and develop a solution
that improves process and outcomes.

Page 83 of 98



Cannabis. The state’s commercial cannabis licensing process continues to evolve as new challenges
arise. CSAC staff is working with the Legislature and state licensing agencies to ensure for an efficient
and timely transition of state temporary licenses to provisional and annual licenses, while providing
local jurisdictions time to get through the local review process as well. In addition, CSAC continues to
support the work of the California Cannabis Authority to manage a statewide data platform that
provides local regulators with accurate, real-time regulatory and compliance data to help ensure for a
safe and well-regulated cannabis marketplace in California.

Water Resources & Regulatory Issues. The regulatory agencies have been working overtime since
January to move forward on a number of CSAC priority issues. On April 2, the California State Water
Resources Control Board adopted an updated version of the Waters of the State regulation. These
regulations define the scope of protected waters of the state and how to interact with these protected
water bodies and wetlands. CSAC and our partners at the County Engineers Association of California
(CEAC) were actively engaged in this rulemaking for the past several months and supported a
streamlined and consistent regulatory process that protects the State’s wetlands resources while
providing regulatory certainty for public agencies and private property owners. CSAC and CEAC joined a
coalition of the water agencies to influence the Board’s final adopted rule. The coalition was successful
in obtaining an exclusion from the regulations for public agencies for routine maintenance and
emergency operations. While we were not successful in achieving all of our suggested amendments to
the rule, CSAC will continue to advocate for these improvements as the new state regulations move
from adoption to implementation.

CSAC continues to engage Cal Recycle and the waste management stakeholder community on the
implementation of SB 1383 (Lara, Chapter 395, Statutes of 2016), and the development of regulations
that will requires a 50 percent reduction of organic waste by 2020 and a 75 percent reduction by 2025.
CSAC staff submitted comments and testified at the first public hearing on the draft rule in March.
Funding and the development of infrastructure capable of processing organics will be key elements of
this discussion and the focus of CSAC’s advocacy efforts as well as sound and workable implementation
of the rule. In addition, CSAC will work with Cal Recycle and the Legislature to work towards solutions
for the development of additional markets for recyclable materials. This is a critical issue as the
overseas markets have almost been eliminated due to a recent Chinese policy, known as “National
Sword.” This new policy will significantly limit the import of US recyclables, leaving California with
limited options for processing these materials in domestic markets.

Page 84 of 98



AENR Legislative Priorities Status Update
Attachment Six
2019 AENR Active Positions Bill Report

Page 85 of 98



AENR Bills with Active Positions
4/16/2019

500-Agriculture

SB 657 (Monning D) Cannabis cultivation: county agricultural commissioners: reporting.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/11/2019
Status: 4/11/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 4/2/2019-S. APPR.
Calendar: 4/22/2019 10 a.m. - John L. Burton Hearing Room (4203)
SENATE APPROPRIATIONS, PORTANTINO, Chair
Summary: Would authorize a county agricultural commissioner to report to the Secretary of Food and
Agriculture on the condition, acreage, production, and value of cannabis produced in the
commissioner’s county under a cultivation license issued pursuant to MAUCRSA, in a similar manner as
required for agricultural products pursuant to a specified provision. The bill would provide that this
data may be organized by categories including, but not limited to, state cultivator license type and
other specified categories. The bill would prohibit a county agricultural commissioner from seeking
reimbursement from certain funding sources for expenses incurred pursuant to this authority.

CSAC Position
Support

503- Cannabis

AB 1356 (Ting D) Cannabis: local jurisdictions: retail commercial cannabis activity.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/4/2019
Status: 4/8/2019-Re-referred to Com. on B. & P.
Location: 3/14/2019-A. B.&P.
Calendar: 4/23/2019 9:30 a.m. - State Capitol, Room 4202 ASSEMBLY BUSINESS AND
PROFESSIONS, LOW, Chair
Summary: Would, if more than 50% of the electorate of a local jurisdiction voted in favor of AUMA,
require a local jurisdiction to issue a minimum number of local licenses authorizing adult-use or
medicinal retail cannabis commercial activity within that jurisdiction that would be permitted by a
retailer license issued under MAUCRSA. The bill would require the minimum number of those local
licenses required to be issued in that jurisdiction to be 25% of the number of currently active on-sale
general licenses for alcoholic beverage sales in that jurisdiction, as specified, unless the minimum
number would result in a ratio greater than one local license for retail cannabis commercial activity for
every 10,000 residents of the local jurisdiction, in which case the bill would require the minium number
to be determined by dividing the number of residents in the local jurisdiction by 10,000 and rounding
down to the nearest whole number.

CSAC Position
Oppose

AB 1530 (Cooley D) Unauthorized cannabis activity reduction grants: local jurisdiction restrictions on
cannabis delivery.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Status: 4/9/2019-In committee: Set, first hearing. Failed passage. Reconsideration granted.
Location: 3/21/2019-A. B.&P.
Summary: Would require the Board of State and Community Corrections to create and administer a
program of grants to be made on a competitive basis to cities, counties, and joint powers authorities
to establish or expand an enforcement program against unauthorized cannabis activity, as defined,
and provide consumer education about the difference between licensed or legal cannabis activity and
unlicensed or illegal cannabis activity.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 67 (McGuire D) Cannabis: temporary licenses.
Introduced: 1/8/2019
Last Amend: 3/21/2019

Page 1/13

Page 86 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=NGbYofhKITnLAoDL08Gd%2BRIiiPkxcCe9F0kauLXYjZ55wdaJOXPzAee6psNLCVzR
http://sd17.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vjrqnIVb73oFBjvaA5hZvRg2AsMDJCmXH5vpuzyGH8WqOJmY%2F8wpV2zxf807dCvt
https://a19.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=69VI7oPQBn%2BOU7fRDuTOAekVFp4qsJ5NmRp6sFBohA%2Ffd2Dsp0oaR8zuTCuIGZBU
https://a08.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=QcQuil8x%2FL%2Fd0XG%2B9G0QL0vg7f%2FSIwOuOXlQMgG1Af%2B62nlp8yyT9r%2BpScjWycnl
http://sd02.senate.ca.gov/

Status: 4/4/2019-Read third time. Urgency clause adopted. Passed. (Ayes 32. Noes 4.) Ordered to the
Assembly. In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

Location: 4/4/2019-A. DESK

Summary: MAUCRSA, until January 1, 2020, authorizes a licensing authority to issue a provisional
license to an applicant that holds, or held, a temporary license for the same premises and the same
commercial cannabis activity, if specified conditions are met. Current law required the provisional
license to be valid for 12 months and prohibits the provisional license from being renewed. This bill
would, until September 15, 2019, revalidate an expired temporary license issued by the Department of
Food and Agriculture, if the licensee submitted an application for an annual state license and
application fees for the same premises and commercial cannabis activity for which the temporary
license was issued, before the licensee’s temporary license expiration date.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 185 (McGuire D) Cannabis: marketing.
Introduced: 1/30/2019
Last Amend: 3/13/2019
Status: 4/2/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 4. Noes 0.) (April 2).
Re-referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 4/2/2019-S. APPR.
Summary: MAUCRSA requires, not later than January 1, 2021, the Department of Food and Agriculture
to establish a program for cannabis comparable to the National Organic Program and the California
Organic Food and Farming Act. Current law requires the department to be the sole determiner of
organic designation and certification, unless the National Organic Program authorizes organic
designation and certification for cannabis, in which case the department’s authority would become
inoperative and would be repealed on the following January 1. This bill would require the department
to establish the certification program in conjunction with the State Department of Public Health and
would specify that the certification program be for cannabis and manufactured cannabis products.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 657 (Monning D) Cannabis cultivation: county agricultural commissioners: reporting.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/11/2019
Status: 4/11/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 4/2/2019-S. APPR.
Calendar: 4/22/2019 10 a.m. - John L. Burton Hearing Room (4203)
SENATE APPROPRIATIONS, PORTANTINO, Chair
Summary: Would authorize a county agricultural commissioner to report to the Secretary of Food and
Agriculture on the condition, acreage, production, and value of cannabis produced in the
commissioner’s county under a cultivation license issued pursuant to MAUCRSA, in a similar manner as
required for agricultural products pursuant to a specified provision. The bill would provide that this
data may be organized by categories including, but not limited to, state cultivator license type and
other specified categories. The bill would prohibit a county agricultural commissioner from seeking
reimbursement from certain funding sources for expenses incurred pursuant to this authority.

CSAC Position
Support

510-Bonds

SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 4/4/2019
Status: 4/4/2019-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. GOV. & F.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary: Would enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,300,000,000
pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged areas,
reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts on urban areas and
vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, protect rivers, lakes, and streams,
reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural
lands, and protect coastal lands and resources.

Page 2/13

Page 87 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Gvq04dhRHEjlFIK6%2B7510b5eNWkZQ2Q82H8BfFgI3pkRvdWot8%2FVZFCbBCQWBvOj
http://sd02.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=NGbYofhKITnLAoDL08Gd%2BRIiiPkxcCe9F0kauLXYjZ55wdaJOXPzAee6psNLCVzR
http://sd17.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5une5%2FGEmmjhIM6d4Bd2PGEy6g7%2FhG73B4yybo5QEYmJQs7DjAOMLKVvEt3Su7xL
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/

CSAC Position
Support in
Concept

520-Budget

SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 4/4/2019
Status: 4/4/2019-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. GOV. & F.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary: Would enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,300,000,000
pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged areas,
reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts on urban areas and
vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, protect rivers, lakes, and streams,
reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural
lands, and protect coastal lands and resources.
CSAC Position
Support in
Concept
530-Disasters
AB 1375 (Bigelow R) Disaster relief: dead and dying tree removal: allocation to local agencies.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Status: 4/4/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 20. Noes 0.) (April 3).
Re-referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 4/4/2019-A. APPR.
Summary: The California Disaster Assistance Act provides that the state share for disaster project
allocations to local agencies is no more than 75% of total state eligible costs, except for specified
events for which the state share is up to 100% of state eligible costs.This bill would provide that the
state share for the removal of dead and dying trees in connection with the Governor’s Proclamation of
a State of Emergency issued on October 30, 2015, is no more than 90% of total state eligible costs.
CSAC Position
Support
SB 19 (Dodd D) Water resources: stream gages.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 2/28/2019
Status: 4/8/2019-April 8 hearing: Placed on APPR. suspense file.
Location: 4/8/2019-S. APPR. SUSPENSE FILE
Summary: Would require the Department of Water Resources and the State Water Resources Control
Board, upon an appropriation of funds by the Legislature, to develop a plan to deploy a network of
stream gages that includes a determination of funding needs and opportunities for modernizing and
reactivating existing gages and deploying new gages, as specified. The bill would require the
department and the board, in consultation with the Department of Fish and Wildlife, the Department of
Conservation, the Central Valley Flood Protection Board, interested stakeholders, and, to the extent
they wish to consult, local agencies, to develop the plan to address significant gaps in information
necessary for water management and the conservation of freshwater species.
CSAC Position
Support
SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.

Introduced: 12/3/2018

Last Amend: 4/4/2019

Status: 4/4/2019-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.

Location: 4/3/2019-S. GOV. & F.

Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary: Would enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if

Page 3/13

Page 88 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5une5%2FGEmmjhIM6d4Bd2PGEy6g7%2FhG73B4yybo5QEYmJQs7DjAOMLKVvEt3Su7xL
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Bo5MneTgmN2g%2F0tuloUqkJxvkcWMgPoL3cexurnAD3w6SSsBtXDUwNyBZ0V5kkGr
https://ad05.asmrc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Bv2K%2FdiV31Pz88zIr4xWzVoimt1eD261KOcpoPKPXY7yI2KgmRqq9mJiXy1SNQ8D
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5une5%2FGEmmjhIM6d4Bd2PGEy6g7%2FhG73B4yybo5QEYmJQs7DjAOMLKVvEt3Su7xL
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/

approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,300,000,000
pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged areas,
reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts on urban areas and
vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, protect rivers, lakes, and streams,
reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural
lands, and protect coastal lands and resources.

CSAC Position

Support in
Concept

SB 182 (Jackson D) Local government: planning and zoning: wildfires.
Introduced: 1/29/2019
Last Amend: 3/28/2019
Status: 4/11/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on RLS. (Ayes 6. Noes 1.) (April 10).
Re-referred to Com. on RLS. Re-referred to Com. on HOUSING.
Location: 4/11/2019-S. HOUSING
Calendar: 4/22/2019 3 p.m. or upon adjournment of Session - Room 112 SENATE HOUSING, WIENER,
Chair
Summary: Would require the safety element, upon the next revision of the housing element or the
hazard mitigation plan, on or after January 1, 2020, whichever occurs first, to be reviewed and
updated as necessary to include a comprehensive retrofit strategy, as specified. The bill would also
require the planning agency to review and, if necessary, revise the safety element upon each revision
of the housing element or local hazard mitigation plan, but not less than once every 8 years, to identify
new information relating to retrofit updates applicable to the city or county that was not available
during the previous revision of the safety element.
CSAC Position
Support in
Concept
SB 670 (McGuire D) Telecommunications: outages affecting public safety.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Status: 4/9/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 16. Noes 0.) (April 9).
Re-referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 4/9/2019-S. APPR.
Summary: Would require a provider of telecommunications services, as defined, that provides access
to 911 service to provide responder outage notification by electronic mail to the Office of Emergency
Services whenever an outage occurs limiting the provider’s customers’ ability to make 911 calls or
receive emergency notifications, within 60 minutes of discovering the outage. The bill would make the
Office of Emergency Services responsible for notifying any applicable county office of emergency
services and the sheriff of any county affected by the outage. The bill would require the responder
outage notification to the Office of Emergency Services to include the telecommunications provider’s
contact name, a calling number to be staffed as specified, and a description of the estimated area
affected by the outage.
CSAC Position
Support
550-Energy
AB 257 (Mathis R) Solid waste: woody biomass: collection and conversion.
Introduced: 1/23/2019
Last Amend: 4/2/2019
Status: 4/10/2019-In committee: Set, first hearing. Referred to APPR. suspense file.
Location: 4/10/2019-A. APPR. SUSPENSE FILE
Summary: Would create a 5-year woody biomass rural county collection and disposal pilot program, to
be administered by the department, consisting of awarding funding to participating counties with a
total population of less than 250,000 for the purpose of conducting community collection days at which
individuals can dispose of woody biomass free of charge. The bill would require a county awarded
funding under the program to contract with a local biomass conversion facility to collect and convert
the biomass in a way that results in fewer greenhouse gases emitted than if the biomass had been
disposed of.
CSAC Position
Support
SB 515 (Caballero D) California Renewables Portfolio Standard Program: bioenergy renewable feed-in

Page 4/13

Page 89 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=JFVrSBW2yajopDr2TtJchRxCsFvURxL0Z0eVRo3PB%2FeMQc1frdp0zd2iLk9qUi1i
http://sd19.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=xigMVsq0g%2Fj5Hk4UumIehEPObMPVgr1Z5jml4iySbXIiNmMBrLroGQzhQlq5PUow
http://sd02.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ogSxYjNp%2BEd%2F2PtWGFRd8iKieyaFMXpmMru2d214KqZGLeeIMtlNYrBhJs2BTZld
http://ad26.asmrc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=6Xj0Bhms4aKVcGyxtBoBM5Q9oUJ7rxzLDwfsQC%2Bqxk7KvLFlJVwg3zxyaR5T3%2FCw
https://sd12.senate.ca.gov/

tariff.

Introduced: 2/21/2019

Last Amend: 4/8/2019

Status: 4/11/2019-Re-referred to Com. on N.R. & W.

Location: 4/11/2019-S. N.R. & W.

Calendar: 4/23/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE NATURAL RESOURCES AND WATER, STERN, Chair

Summary: Pursuant to current law, the Public Utilities Commission has adopted resolutions
establishing fuel or feedstock procurement requirements for generation from bioenergy projects
intended to reduce wildfire risks that are applicable to the state’s 3 largest electrical corporations. This
bill would expand the fuels and feedstocks that are eligible to meet these wildfire risk reduction fuel
and feedstock requirements to include biomass diverted from specified higher fire-risk zones.

CSAC Position
Support

560-Fire Safety

SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 4/4/2019
Status: 4/4/2019-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. GOV. & F.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary: Would enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,300,000,000
pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged areas,
reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts on urban areas and
vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, protect rivers, lakes, and streams,
reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural
lands, and protect coastal lands and resources.
CSAC Position
Support in
Concept
SB 190 (Dodd D) Fire safety: building standards.
Introduced: 1/30/2019
Last Amend: 4/1/2019
Status: 4/9/2019-VOTE: Do pass as amended, but first amend, and re-refer to the Committee on
[Appropriations] with the recommendation: To Consent Calendar
Location: 4/9/2019-S. APPR.
Summary: Would require the Office of the State Fire Marshal to develop, in consultation with
representatives from local, state, and federal fire services, local government, building officials, utility
companies, the building industry, insurers and insurance research organizations, and the
environmental community, a model defensible space program to be made available for use by a city,
county, or city and county in the enforcement of the defensible space provisions. The bill would set
forth required components of the program.
CSAC Position
Support
SB 670 (McGuire D) Telecommunications: outages affecting public safety.

Introduced: 2/22/2019

Status: 4/9/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 16. Noes 0.) (April 9).
Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Location: 4/9/2019-S. APPR.

Summary: Would require a provider of telecommunications services, as defined, that provides access
to 911 service to provide responder outage notification by electronic mail to the Office of Emergency
Services whenever an outage occurs limiting the provider’s customers’ ability to make 911 calls or
receive emergency notifications, within 60 minutes of discovering the outage. The bill would make the
Office of Emergency Services responsible for notifying any applicable county office of emergency
services and the sheriff of any county affected by the outage. The bill would require the responder
outage notification to the Office of Emergency Services to include the telecommunications provider’s
contact name, a calling number to be staffed as specified, and a description of the estimated area
affected by the outage.

CSAC Position
Page 5/13

Page 90 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=6Xj0Bhms4aKVcGyxtBoBM5Q9oUJ7rxzLDwfsQC%2Bqxk7KvLFlJVwg3zxyaR5T3%2FCw
https://sd12.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5une5%2FGEmmjhIM6d4Bd2PGEy6g7%2FhG73B4yybo5QEYmJQs7DjAOMLKVvEt3Su7xL
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=0kQgI40pz2fgYcVjqmu8YwwZ%2BV8cyXt8ile7XcD9qHiZW7g2WHKW6idgdylCRcJ5
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=xigMVsq0g%2Fj5Hk4UumIehEPObMPVgr1Z5jml4iySbXIiNmMBrLroGQzhQlq5PUow
http://sd02.senate.ca.gov/

AB 257

AB 1375

Support

561: Wildfires

(Mathis R) Solid waste: woody biomass: collection and conversion.
Introduced: 1/23/2019

Last Amend: 4/2/2019

Status: 4/10/2019-In committee: Set, first hearing. Referred to APPR. suspense file.
Location: 4/10/2019-A. APPR. SUSPENSE FILE

Summary: Would create a 5-year woody biomass rural county collection and disposal pilot program, to
be administered by the department, consisting of awarding funding to participating counties with a
total population of less than 250,000 for the purpose of conducting community collection days at which
individuals can dispose of woody biomass free of charge. The bill would require a county awarded
funding under the program to contract with a local biomass conversion facility to collect and convert
the biomass in a way that results in fewer greenhouse gases emitted than if the biomass had been
disposed of.

CSAC Position
Support

(Bigelow R) Disaster relief: dead and dying tree removal: allocation to local agencies.

SB 190

SB 226

Introduced: 2/22/2019

Status: 4/4/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 20. Noes 0.) (April 3).
Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Location: 4/4/2019-A. APPR.

Summary: The California Disaster Assistance Act provides that the state share for disaster project
allocations to local agencies is no more than 75% of total state eligible costs, except for specified
events for which the state share is up to 100% of state eligible costs.This bill would provide that the
state share for the removal of dead and dying trees in connection with the Governor’s Proclamation of
a State of Emergency issued on October 30, 2015, is no more than 90% of total state eligible costs.

CSAC Position
Support

(Dodd D) Fire safety: building standards.

Introduced: 1/30/2019

Last Amend: 4/1/2019

Status: 4/9/2019-VOTE: Do pass as amended, but first amend, and re-refer to the Committee on
[Appropriations] with the recommendation: To Consent Calendar

Location: 4/9/2019-S. APPR.

Summary: Would require the Office of the State Fire Marshal to develop, in consultation with
representatives from local, state, and federal fire services, local government, building officials, utility
companies, the building industry, insurers and insurance research organizations, and the
environmental community, a model defensible space program to be made available for use by a city,
county, or city and county in the enforcement of the defensible space provisions. The bill would set
forth required components of the program.

CSAC Position
Support

(Nielsen R) Watershed restoration: wildfires: grant program.

Introduced: 2/7/2019

Last Amend: 3/18/2019

Status: 4/11/2019-Re-referred to Com. on EQ.

Location: 4/11/2019-S. E.Q.

Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 113 SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair
Summary: Current law authorizes the Natural Resources Agency and the California Environmental
Protection Agency to jointly develop and submit to the Legislature a plan for forest and water
restoration investments for the drainages that supply specified reservoirs. This bill would require the
agency to develop and implement a watershed restoration grant program, as provided, for purposes
of awarding grants to eligible counties, as defined, to assist them with watershed restoration on
watersheds that have been affected by wildfire, as specified. The bill would require an eligible county
receiving funds pursuant to the grant program to submit annually to the agency a report regarding
projects funded by the grant program, as provided. The bill would make related legislative findings and
declarations.

CSAC Position
Page 6/13

Page 91 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ogSxYjNp%2BEd%2F2PtWGFRd8iKieyaFMXpmMru2d214KqZGLeeIMtlNYrBhJs2BTZld
http://ad26.asmrc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Bo5MneTgmN2g%2F0tuloUqkJxvkcWMgPoL3cexurnAD3w6SSsBtXDUwNyBZ0V5kkGr
https://ad05.asmrc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=0kQgI40pz2fgYcVjqmu8YwwZ%2BV8cyXt8ile7XcD9qHiZW7g2WHKW6idgdylCRcJ5
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=alWtKA%2BnXQtaz1udlEZPp3MFx2gXopRQbRrzG%2BjUV94XgWF5uzGFke56PUMjGXFd
http://nielsen.cssrc.us/

Support

565-Flood Control

SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 4/4/2019
Status: 4/4/2019-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. GOV. & F.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary: Would enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,300,000,000
pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged areas,
reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts on urban areas and
vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, protect rivers, lakes, and streams,
reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural
lands, and protect coastal lands and resources.

CSAC Position

Support in
Concept

570-Hazardous Materials

AB 1500 (Carrillo D) Hazardous substances.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 3/28/2019
Status: 4/1/2019-Re-referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 3/26/2019-A. APPR.
Summary: Would repeal the provision authorizing a UPA to suspend or revoke a unified program
facility permit, or an element of a unified program facility permit, for not paying the permit fee or a fine
or penalty associated with the permit. The bill would authorize the UPA, if a permittee does not comply
with a written notice from the UPA to make those payments by the specified date, in addition to
suspending or revoking the permit or permit element, to withhold issuance of the permit or permit

element.
CSAC Position
Support
SB 726 (Caballero D) Hazardous waste: public agencies: materials exchange program.

Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/3/2019
Status: 4/3/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Com. on EQ.
Location: 3/14/2019-S. E.Q.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 113 SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair
Summary: Current law authorizes a public agency to conduct a materials exchange program as a part
of its household hazardous waste collection program if the public agency determines which reusable
household hazardous products or materials are suitable and acceptable for distribution to the public in
accordance with a quality assurance plan prepared by the public agency. Current law requires a public
agency to instruct a recipient to use the product in a manner consistent with the instructions on the
label. This bill would additionally authorize a public agency’s contractor to conduct that materials
exchange program and would require the contractor to provide those same instructions to a recipient.
CSAC Position
Support

592-Water

AB 402 (Quirk D) State Water Resources Control Board: local primacy delegation: funding stabilization
program.
Introduced: 2/6/2019

Last Amend: 3/5/2019
Page 7/13

Page 92 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5une5%2FGEmmjhIM6d4Bd2PGEy6g7%2FhG73B4yybo5QEYmJQs7DjAOMLKVvEt3Su7xL
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=2r1ERop44OS5VXx%2F%2Fxrh5uxa%2BLxzedpgCgTq8pYZ1p%2B22Hqjdo7kqUulFG8tpqxL
https://a51.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=QZ%2FmjuwMDnzUOBS5fdklIjOLX6yuOFbmVQ9BIz%2Fcfv1kWa52wFFc7GKTKCgNKPKu
https://sd12.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=uSsby%2FRmZlcwrq6d3U1n%2Bv2Kn%2BCSyYPPYUbo2BZ3LJyMsSZQQ1DmZHHqw05O%2F2VN
https://a20.asmdc.org/

Status: 3/20/2019-In committee: Set, first hearing. Referred to suspense file.

Location: 3/12/2019-A. APPR.

Summary: The California Safe Drinking Water Act requires the State Water Resources Control Board to
administer provisions relating to the regulation of drinking water to protect public health. The act
requires the state board to provide the local primacy agency, to the extent funds are available from
the Safe Drinking Water Account, with an annual drinking water surveillance program grant to cover
the costs of conducting inspection, monitoring, surveillance, and water quality evaluation activities
specified in the local primacy agreement. The act requires the state board to adopt a schedule of fees
and requires a public water system under the jurisdiction of a local primacy agency to pay these fees
to the local primacy agency in lieu of the state board. This bill would include enforcement costs as costs
covered by an annual drinking water surveillance program grant.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 19 (Dodd D) Water resources: stream gages.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 2/28/2019
Status: 4/8/2019-April 8 hearing: Placed on APPR. suspense file.
Location: 4/8/2019-S. APPR. SUSPENSE FILE
Summary: Would require the Department of Water Resources and the State Water Resources Control
Board, upon an appropriation of funds by the Legislature, to develop a plan to deploy a network of
stream gages that includes a determination of funding needs and opportunities for modernizing and
reactivating existing gages and deploying new gages, as specified. The bill would require the
department and the board, in consultation with the Department of Fish and Wildlife, the Department of
Conservation, the Central Valley Flood Protection Board, interested stakeholders, and, to the extent
they wish to consult, local agencies, to develop the plan to address significant gaps in information
necessary for water management and the conservation of freshwater species.
CSAC Position
Support
SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 4/4/2019
Status: 4/4/2019-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. GOV. & F.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary: Would enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,300,000,000
pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged areas,
reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts on urban areas and
vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, protect rivers, lakes, and streams,
reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural
lands, and protect coastal lands and resources.
CSAC Position
Support in
Concept
SB 205 (Hertzberg D) Business licenses: stormwater discharge compliance.
Introduced: 2/4/2019
Last Amend: 3/21/2019
Status: 4/5/2019-Set for hearing April 22.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. APPR.
Calendar: 4/22/2019 10 a.m. - John L. Burton Hearing Room (4203)
SENATE APPROPRIATIONS, PORTANTINO, Chair
Summary: Would require, when applying to a city or a county for an initial business license or business
license renewal, a person who conducts a business operation that is a regulated industry to
demonstrate compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit
program by providing specified information, under penalty of perjury, on the application, including,
among other things, the Standard Industrial Classification code for the business. The bill would apply
to all applications for initial business licenses and business license renewals submitted on and after
January 1, 2020.
CSAC Position
Concerns
SB 226 (Nielsen R) Watershed restoration: wildfires: grant program.

Page 8/13

Page 93 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Bv2K%2FdiV31Pz88zIr4xWzVoimt1eD261KOcpoPKPXY7yI2KgmRqq9mJiXy1SNQ8D
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5une5%2FGEmmjhIM6d4Bd2PGEy6g7%2FhG73B4yybo5QEYmJQs7DjAOMLKVvEt3Su7xL
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ttlU7fPwsCvooEtY%2Fzmx8IlmUWMj22zuwSaIAFKTNjB8mBqPS%2FDNuDfjHxQ0cOZN
https://berryhill.cssrc.us/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=alWtKA%2BnXQtaz1udlEZPp3MFx2gXopRQbRrzG%2BjUV94XgWF5uzGFke56PUMjGXFd
http://nielsen.cssrc.us/

Introduced: 2/7/2019

Last Amend: 3/18/2019

Status: 4/11/2019-Re-referred to Com. on EQ.

Location: 4/11/2019-S. E.Q.

Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 113 SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair

Summary: Current law authorizes the Natural Resources Agency and the California Environmental
Protection Agency to jointly develop and submit to the Legislature a plan for forest and water
restoration investments for the drainages that supply specified reservoirs. This bill would require the
agency to develop and implement a watershed restoration grant program, as provided, for purposes
of awarding grants to eligible counties, as defined, to assist them with watershed restoration on
watersheds that have been affected by wildfire, as specified. The bill would require an eligible county
receiving funds pursuant to the grant program to submit annually to the agency a report regarding
projects funded by the grant program, as provided. The bill would make related legislative findings and
declarations.

CSAC Position
Support

595-Forestry

SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 4/4/2019
Status: 4/4/2019-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. GOV. & F.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary: Would enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,300,000,000
pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged areas,
reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts on urban areas and
vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, protect rivers, lakes, and streams,
reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural
lands, and protect coastal lands and resources.

CSAC Position

Support in
Concept
610-Solid Waste
AB 257 (Mathis R) Solid waste: woody biomass: collection and conversion.

Introduced: 1/23/2019
Last Amend: 4/2/2019
Status: 4/10/2019-In committee: Set, first hearing. Referred to APPR. suspense file.
Location: 4/10/2019-A. APPR. SUSPENSE FILE
Summary: Would create a 5-year woody biomass rural county collection and disposal pilot program, to
be administered by the department, consisting of awarding funding to participating counties with a
total population of less than 250,000 for the purpose of conducting community collection days at which
individuals can dispose of woody biomass free of charge. The bill would require a county awarded
funding under the program to contract with a local biomass conversion facility to collect and convert
the biomass in a way that results in fewer greenhouse gases emitted than if the biomass had been
disposed of.

CSAC Position

Support

AB 1080 (Gonzalez D) California Circular Economy and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act.
Introduced: 2/21/2019
Last Amend: 3/19/2019

Status: 3/26/2019-Coauthors revised. From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes
8. Noes 3.) (March 25). Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Location: 3/26/2019-A. APPR.

Summary: Would establish the California Circular Economy and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act, which
would require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, in consultation with the State

Page 9/13

Page 94 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5une5%2FGEmmjhIM6d4Bd2PGEy6g7%2FhG73B4yybo5QEYmJQs7DjAOMLKVvEt3Su7xL
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ogSxYjNp%2BEd%2F2PtWGFRd8iKieyaFMXpmMru2d214KqZGLeeIMtlNYrBhJs2BTZld
http://ad26.asmrc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vRsE1AV7kXSaaW8JW3qSI9iWfnrfJTE8sXIXrEu8S1m6JjWAHmMtOcW02M%2Fa033g
https://a80.asmdc.org/

Water Resources Control Board and the Ocean Protection Council, to adopt regulations to source
reduce and recycle 75% of single-use packaging and products sold or distributed in California by 2030.

CSAC Position
Support

AB 1509 (Mullin D) Solid waste: lithium-ion batteries.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/1/2019
Status: 4/10/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on NAT. RES. (Ayes 6. Noes 0.) (April
9). Re-referred to Com. on NAT. RES.
Location: 4/9/2019-A. NAT. RES.
Calendar: 4/22/2019 2:30 p.m. - State Capitol, Room 447 ASSEMBLY NATURAL
RESOURCES, FRIEDMAN, Chair

Summary: Would establish the Lithium-Ion Battery Recycling Program in the Department of Resources
Recycling and Recovery. The bill would require the department, by March 1, 2021, and by March 1 of
each year thereafter, to track the total number of covered batteries and the total number of covered
battery-embedded products disposed of in the state in the previous year. The bill would require
manufacturers and retailers, as defined, to achieve specified recycling rates for covered batteries and
covered battery-embedded products based on the number of covered batteries and covered battery-
embedded products disposed of in the previous year, as provided.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 54 (Allen D) California Circular Economy and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act.
Introduced: 12/11/2018
Last Amend: 3/25/2019
Status: 3/25/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 3/20/2019-S. APPR.
Summary: Would establish the California Circular Economy and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act, which
would require the department, in consultation with the State Water Resources Control Board and the
Ocean Protection Council, to adopt regulations to source reduce and recycle 75% of single-use
packaging and products sold or distributed in California by 2030.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 667 (Hueso D) Greenhouse gases: recycling infrastructure and facilities.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/10/2019
Status: 4/10/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Com. on EQ.
Location: 3/14/2019-S. E.Q.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 113 SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair
Summary: Would require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery to develop, on or
before January 1, 2021, and would authorize the department to amend, a 5-year investment strategy
to drive innovation and support technological development and infrastructure, in order to meet
specified organic waste reduction and recycling targets, as provided. The bill would require, on or
before June 1, 2021, the department, in coordination with the Treasurer, to develop financial incentive
mechanisms, including, but not limited to, loans and incentive payments, to fund organic waste
diversion and recycling infrastructure.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 726 (Caballero D) Hazardous waste: public agencies: materials exchange program.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/3/2019
Status: 4/3/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Com. on EQ.
Location: 3/14/2019-S. E.Q.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 113 SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair
Summary: Current law authorizes a public agency to conduct a materials exchange program as a part
of its household hazardous waste collection program if the public agency determines which reusable
household hazardous products or materials are suitable and acceptable for distribution to the public in
accordance with a quality assurance plan prepared by the public agency. Current law requires a public
agency to instruct a recipient to use the product in a manner consistent with the instructions on the

Page 10/13

Page 95 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vHspGcBDzxtEeeBdbd5e6bd4oc9AQr%2F%2BqESo6wa3nHSkgxB5NRWye0CHcTGV9bEq
https://a22.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=tciu3v31G2PiUQH13sYBqLnP3btfJsRlVUOOTHv1yrWrMXAryFTEOyFmeFJdclPy
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vamqqKwGYelNridifLPQkeBhdML6JF%2F20pL3NQXPSB3GIWdQcwbUhrXc%2F4iQUk%2F1
http://sd40.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=QZ%2FmjuwMDnzUOBS5fdklIjOLX6yuOFbmVQ9BIz%2Fcfv1kWa52wFFc7GKTKCgNKPKu
https://sd12.senate.ca.gov/

label. This bill would additionally authorize a public agency’s contractor to conduct that materials
exchange program and would require the contractor to provide those same instructions to a recipient.

CSAC Position
Support

650-ANR Climate Change

SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.
Introduced: 12/3/2018
Last Amend: 4/4/2019
Status: 4/4/2019-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. GOV. & F.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 112 SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary: Would enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in the amount of $4,300,000,000
pursuant to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged areas,
reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts on urban areas and
vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, protect rivers, lakes, and streams,
reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural
lands, and protect coastal lands and resources.
CSAC Position
Support in
Concept
700: Telecommunications
SB 670 (McGuire D) Telecommunications: outages affecting public safety.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Status: 4/9/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes 16. Noes 0.) (April 9).
Re-referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 4/9/2019-S. APPR.
Summary: Would require a provider of telecommunications services, as defined, that provides access
to 911 service to provide responder outage notification by electronic mail to the Office of Emergency
Services whenever an outage occurs limiting the provider’s customers’ ability to make 911 calls or
receive emergency notifications, within 60 minutes of discovering the outage. The bill would make the
Office of Emergency Services responsible for notifying any applicable county office of emergency
services and the sheriff of any county affected by the outage. The bill would require the responder
outage notification to the Office of Emergency Services to include the telecommunications provider’s
contact name, a calling number to be staffed as specified, and a description of the estimated area
affected by the outage.
CSAC Position
Support
901-CEAC Solid Waste
AB 257 (Mathis R) Solid waste: woody biomass: collection and conversion.

Introduced: 1/23/2019

Last Amend: 4/2/2019

Status: 4/10/2019-In committee: Set, first hearing. Referred to APPR. suspense file.

Location: 4/10/2019-A. APPR. SUSPENSE FILE

Summary: Would create a 5-year woody biomass rural county collection and disposal pilot program, to
be administered by the department, consisting of awarding funding to participating counties with a
total population of less than 250,000 for the purpose of conducting community collection days at which
individuals can dispose of woody biomass free of charge. The bill would require a county awarded
funding under the program to contract with a local biomass conversion facility to collect and convert
the biomass in a way that results in fewer greenhouse gases emitted than if the biomass had been
disposed of.

CSAC Position
Support

Page 11/13

Page 96 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5une5%2FGEmmjhIM6d4Bd2PGEy6g7%2FhG73B4yybo5QEYmJQs7DjAOMLKVvEt3Su7xL
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=xigMVsq0g%2Fj5Hk4UumIehEPObMPVgr1Z5jml4iySbXIiNmMBrLroGQzhQlq5PUow
http://sd02.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ogSxYjNp%2BEd%2F2PtWGFRd8iKieyaFMXpmMru2d214KqZGLeeIMtlNYrBhJs2BTZld
http://ad26.asmrc.org/

AB 1080 (Gonzalez D) California Circular Economy and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act.
Introduced: 2/21/2019
Last Amend: 3/19/2019
Status: 3/26/2019-Coauthors revised. From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on APPR. (Ayes
8. Noes 3.) (March 25). Re-referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 3/26/2019-A. APPR.
Summary: Would establish the California Circular Economy and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act, which
would require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, in consultation with the State
Water Resources Control Board and the Ocean Protection Council, to adopt regulations to source
reduce and recycle 75% of single-use packaging and products sold or distributed in California by 2030.
CSAC Position
Support

AB 1509 (Mullin D) Solid waste: lithium-ion batteries.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/1/2019
Status: 4/10/2019-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on NAT. RES. (Ayes 6. Noes 0.) (April
9). Re-referred to Com. on NAT. RES.
Location: 4/9/2019-A. NAT. RES.
Calendar: 4/22/2019 2:30 p.m. - State Capitol, Room 447 ASSEMBLY NATURAL
RESOURCES, FRIEDMAN, Chair
Summary: Would establish the Lithium-Ion Battery Recycling Program in the Department of Resources
Recycling and Recovery. The bill would require the department, by March 1, 2021, and by March 1 of
each year thereafter, to track the total number of covered batteries and the total number of covered
battery-embedded products disposed of in the state in the previous year. The bill would require
manufacturers and retailers, as defined, to achieve specified recycling rates for covered batteries and
covered battery-embedded products based on the number of covered batteries and covered battery-
embedded products disposed of in the previous year, as provided.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 54 (Allen D) California Circular Economy and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act.
Introduced: 12/11/2018
Last Amend: 3/25/2019
Status: 3/25/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Com. on APPR.
Location: 3/20/2019-S. APPR.
Summary: Would establish the California Circular Economy and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act, which
would require the department, in consultation with the State Water Resources Control Board and the
Ocean Protection Council, to adopt regulations to source reduce and recycle 75% of single-use
packaging and products sold or distributed in California by 2030.

CSAC Position
Support

SB 667 (Hueso D) Greenhouse gases: recycling infrastructure and facilities.

Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/10/2019
Status: 4/10/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Com. on EQ.
Location: 3/14/2019-S. E.Q.
Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 113 SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair
Summary: Would require the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery to develop, on or
before January 1, 2021, and would authorize the department to amend, a 5-year investment strategy
to drive innovation and support technological development and infrastructure, in order to meet
specified organic waste reduction and recycling targets, as provided. The bill would require, on or
before June 1, 2021, the department, in coordination with the Treasurer, to develop financial incentive
mechanisms, including, but not limited to, loans and incentive payments, to fund organic waste
diversion and recycling infrastructure.

CSAC Position

Support

SB 726 (Caballero D) Hazardous waste: public agencies: materials exchange program.
Introduced: 2/22/2019
Last Amend: 4/3/2019
Status: 4/3/2019-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended. Re-
Page 12/13

Page 97 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vRsE1AV7kXSaaW8JW3qSI9iWfnrfJTE8sXIXrEu8S1m6JjWAHmMtOcW02M%2Fa033g
https://a80.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vHspGcBDzxtEeeBdbd5e6bd4oc9AQr%2F%2BqESo6wa3nHSkgxB5NRWye0CHcTGV9bEq
https://a22.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=tciu3v31G2PiUQH13sYBqLnP3btfJsRlVUOOTHv1yrWrMXAryFTEOyFmeFJdclPy
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vamqqKwGYelNridifLPQkeBhdML6JF%2F20pL3NQXPSB3GIWdQcwbUhrXc%2F4iQUk%2F1
http://sd40.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=QZ%2FmjuwMDnzUOBS5fdklIjOLX6yuOFbmVQ9BIz%2Fcfv1kWa52wFFc7GKTKCgNKPKu
https://sd12.senate.ca.gov/

referred to Com. on EQ.

Location: 3/14/2019-S. E.Q.

Calendar: 4/24/2019 9 a.m. - Room 113 SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair

Summary: Current law authorizes a public agency to conduct a materials exchange program as a part
of its household hazardous waste collection program if the public agency determines which reusable
household hazardous products or materials are suitable and acceptable for distribution to the public in
accordance with a quality assurance plan prepared by the public agency. Current law requires a public
agency to instruct a recipient to use the product in a manner consistent with the instructions on the
label. This bill would additionally authorize a public agency’s contractor to conduct that materials
exchange program and would require the contractor to provide those same instructions to a recipient.

CSAC Position
Support

902-Flood Control & Water Resources

SB 205 (Hertzberg D) Business licenses: stormwater discharge compliance.
Introduced: 2/4/2019
Last Amend: 3/21/2019
Status: 4/5/2019-Set for hearing April 22.
Location: 4/3/2019-S. APPR.
Calendar: 4/22/2019 10 a.m. - John L. Burton Hearing Room (4203)
SENATE APPROPRIATIONS, PORTANTINO, Chair
Summary: Would require, when applying to a city or a county for an initial business license or business
license renewal, a person who conducts a business operation that is a regulated industry to
demonstrate compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit
program by providing specified information, under penalty of perjury, on the application, including,
among other things, the Standard Industrial Classification code for the business. The bill would apply
to all applications for initial business licenses and business license renewals submitted on and after
January 1, 2020.

CSAC Position
Concerns

Total Measures: 46
Total Tracking Forms: 46

Page 13/13

Page 98 of 98


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ttlU7fPwsCvooEtY%2Fzmx8IlmUWMj22zuwSaIAFKTNjB8mBqPS%2FDNuDfjHxQ0cOZN
https://berryhill.cssrc.us/

	1. FINAL AENR 2019 Leg Conference Agenda 4.15.19
	2. Attachement List 4.12.19
	3. COVER Gov Wildfire Report
	4. Wildfires-and-Climate-Change-California’s-Energy-Future 4.12.19
	Blank Page

	5. COVER CSAC Press Release
	6. CSAC WildfireResponse FINAL 4 12 19
	7. COVER Coaliton Wildfire Press Release
	8. Press Release_4-12-19_FINAL
	9. COVER PSPS Letter
	10. PSPS R.18-12-005 (De-Energization) CSAC Comments on Phase 1 Scoping Memo 3.25...
	11. COVER Leg Priorities Memo Update
	12. AENR 2019 Priorities Update 4-16-19
	13. COVER AENR Acitve Positions Bill Report
	14. AENR Bill Report With Active Positions 4.16.19



